
PORT OF NEWPORT REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA 
Tuesday, August 23, 2016, 6:00 p.m. 

South Beach Activities Room 
2120 SE Marine Science Drive, Newport, OR 97365 

I. Call to Order ......................................................................................................................................... 6:00 
II. Changes to the Agenda ......................................................................................................................... 6:01 

III. Public Comment ................................................................................................................................... 6:02 
IV. Consent Calendar ................................................................................................................................. 6:05   

A. Minutes 
1. Commission Special Meeting July 26, 2016 
2. Regular Commission Meeting July 26, 2016 

B. Financial Report 
C. Resolution Designating Bank Accounts and Authorizing Check Signers 
D. Award of Port Dock 5 Fixed Pier Approach Engineering Contract 
E. IGA w/ City of Newport for Bay Front Parking District Extension 

V. Correspondence/Presentations 
VI. Old Business ......................................................................................................................................... 6:10 

A. Items Removed from Consent Calendar 
B. Accounts Paid 
C. International Terminal Shipping Facility Update 

VII. New Business ....................................................................................................................................... 6:20 
A. Resolution Adopting a Safety Policy 
B. Award of Port Dock 5 Pile Replacement Contract 

VIII. Staff Reports ......................................................................................................................................... 6:35 
A. Director of Finance 

1. July Occupancy Report 
B. Director of Operations 
C. General Manager 

1. Rogue Brewery Mural 
2. Highway 20 Construction 
3. Oregon Coast Zone Management Association (OCZMA) Membership Renewal 
4. SDAO Training 
5. CW Pasley Propeller 
6. DEQ Permitting for Fish Stations 
7. BBQ Albacore Tuna Classic/NOAA 5th Anniversary 
8. South Jetty Access 
9. Goal Setting 

IX. Commissioner Reports ......................................................................................................................... 6:50 
X. Calendar/Future Considerations ........................................................................................................... 7:00 

A. 7/15 – 8/26 Shop at the Dock, Fridays 
B. 8/27 – 8/29 Salmon Enchanted Evening 
C. 9/5  Labor Day, Port Office Closed 
D. 9/10 MDR Charity Car Show 
E. 9/23 – 9/24 Arthritis Bike Classic 
F. 9/27 Regular Commission Meeting 
G. 9/29–9/30 OPPA Annual Conference 
H. 108 – 10/9 Columbus Day Regatta 
I. 10/11 – 10/14 PCC Conference 
J. 10/18 Regular Commission Meeting (rescheduled) 
K. 11/15 Regular Commission Meeting (rescheduled) 
L. 12/20 Regular Commission Meeting (rescheduled) 

XI. Public Comment ................................................................................................................................... 7:05 
XII. Adjournment ......................................................................................................................................... 7:08 

 

Regular meetings are scheduled for the fourth Tuesday of every month at 6:00 p.m. 
The Port Newport South Beach Marina and RV Park Activity Room is accessible to people with disabilities.  A request for an 

interpreter for the hearing impaired or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at least 48 hours in 
advance of the meeting to Port of Newport Administration Office at 541-265-7758. 

-###- 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 1 of 133



Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 2 of 133



PORT OF NEWPORT MINUTES 
July 26, 2016 

Commission Special Meeting 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

Commission Vice-President Ken Brown called the Commission Special Meeting of the Port of Newport 
Board of Commissioners to order at 12:00 noon at the OSU Extension Office, 1211 SE Bay Boulevard, 
Newport, Oregon. 
  
Commissioners Present: Ken Brown (Pos. #4), Vice-President; Patricia Patrick-Joling (Pos. #5), 
Secretary/Treasurer; Stewart Lamerdin (Pos. #3); and Steve Beck (Pos. #2). Walter Chuck (Pos. #1), 
President was absent. 
 
Management and Staff: Kevin Greenwood, General Manager and Karen Hewitt, Administrative 
Assistant. 
 
Members of the Public and Media: Wayde Dudley, Port Volunteer Mates; Barb Dudley, Port Volunteer 
Mates; Lee Fries, Port Volunteer Mates; Jim Shaw, South Beach resident; Ardis DeFreece, HMSC Artist-
in-Residence. 

II. REVIEW ROGUE MURAL PROCESS 
 
Greenwood introduced the Agenda Item and the Staff Report. Greenwood referred to the diagrams 
showing where the murals would be placed on the current Serven Building Distillery and on the new 
warehouse expansion. Greenwood asked the Commission for feedback on the scope of work presented, 
and if the Port Commission wanted to evaluate the concepts or delegate to the City Arts Committee. 
Greenwood also introduced artist Ardis DeFreece, who was referred to him by Rick Brown at NOAA. 
Greenwood reminded the Commission that the Port was responsible for the design of the mural, but the 
mural would be installed by Rogue and their chosen artist. Greenwood said that DeFreece would listen to 
the Commission and create three concepts to be reviewed, as outlined in the scope of work. Patrick-Joling 
said she would like the Commission to make the decision rather than delegating to the City Arts 
Committee; Lamerdin agreed. Patrick-Joling suggested the design should blend in with the area with a 
nautical theme. She also asked who would be responsible for maintenance of the mural. Greenwood said 
that the original building, Serven/Distillery, is owned by the Port, and the Port is responsible for its 
maintenance. The extensions are owned and maintained by Rogue. Greenwood understands that Rogue 
will be responsible for maintaining the murals but will confirm with Brett Joyce. Lamerdin added that it 
would also be in Rogue’s best interest to maintain the murals. He also asked if there had been a public 
announcement about the design, and concern that other area artists may be disgruntled. Beck asked 
DeFreece about her experience with murals. DeFreece said she had 20 years’ experience. Greenwood said 
that DeFreece was also staying in the RV Park and will be here for about 45 days. DeFreece added that it 
is unusual for an artist to design then hand over the design to another artist. Rogue could do an artist call 
for the completion of the mural. 
 
Beck also agreed that the Commission should evaluate the design, and asked if the mural would be used 
as branding. Greenwood also conveyed that Chuck had emailed that he would like the Commission to 
work with the artist. Beck suggested the WPA, art deco period, would be an historically significant style 
to use in designing the murals. He provided some images as samples of what this might look like. Patrick-
Joling also spoke of a mural she was shown in Port Hueneme, CA, that beautifully depicted the history of 
that Port. Lamerdin asked if there was a costs constraint from Rogue. Greenwood said the agreement was 
clear that they will install the mural. DeFreece said she will provide markups and drawings. Her style is 
classical realistic, and generally artists fees for painting a mural are from $35 - $150 per square foot. 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 3 of 133



Brown added that Rogue will be involved in the process of developing the mural. Greenwood said that 
there was someone in the graphic design department at Rogue in Portland who would be their liaison. 
DeFreece added that not all artists work the same way in translating a design into a mural, but with a 
mural this large, there is not a huge amount of detail everywhere. Greenwood shared additional 
information from Chuck’s email that he wanted the activities of South Beach represented, that the 
depictions be accurate with defined details and soft colors. Brown said he had spoken with DeFreece 
about the elements of South Beach, including Rogue which is the largest object there so should be a part 
of the murals, along with NOAA, charters, HMSC, and perhaps Native American oyster beds and sea 
lions. He suggested that the bridge did not need to be included since it was right there, but maybe the 
historical bridge construction could be represented. Monterey cypress trees in the area are also of 
significance, planted by one family in the 1920s – 30s, and the Aquarium has one of the largest on the 
coast. In addition, the trees have great structural design. Patrick-Joling said she would get an image of the 
Port of Hueneme’s mural for reference. Patrick-Joling also commented that the people on the West Coast 
are “hardy souls” and depicting that was important. DeFreece said she was born and raised in the Pacific 
Northwest which was one reason she was interested in the HMSC residency. Lamerdin suggested that the 
Commission lean on the artist for guidance and provide her with element priorities. Brown commented 
that this would just be phase one; there could be future murals. Greenwood said this project includes two 
murals, which could be connected. The current project would be on the Severn building, and the 
expansion would follow 2 – 3 years later.  
 
Brown asked what the budget implications were. Greenwood said there is $15,000 in the General Fund 
for South Beach improvements.  The sidewalk is approximately $16,000. The application for a Homeland 
Security grant was rejected for security cameras. With $1500 added to South Beach planning, there is still 
enough for South Beach service dock planning. Greenwood asked DeFreece if she had enough 
information to get started. She said the Commission had given her a lot of information, and any additional 
comments could be sent to Greenwood to forward to her. Greenwood will schedule a noon work session 
on August 23, 2016, to meet with DeFreece and provide feedback on three concepts presented. From 
there, she could prepare a final draft which could be tweaked.   
 

III. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Jim Shaw said he would like the Port of develop the concepts. The new marine facility student housing 
would be right there. He thought that asking other artists to be involved right now would cause long 
delays. He asked what the time line was for the mural. Greenwood responded the Work Session would be 
August 23rd, and approximately mid-September DeFreece would present concepts, and in October the 
concept would be handed to Rogue. 
 
Lee Fries commented that if the Commission thought that Rogue could take care of something they 
should look at their trucks, which could use better maintenance. 
 

IV. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 12:50 pm. 

 
 

 ATTESTED: 

 
 
   
Walter Chuck, President       Patricia Patrick-Joling, Secretary/Treasurer 

 
-###- 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 4 of 133



PORT OF NEWPORT MINUTES 
July 26, 2016 

Regular Commission Meeting 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

Commission President Walter Chuck called the Regular Commission Meeting of the Port of Newport 
Board of Commissioners to order at 6:00 pm at the OSU Extension Office, 1211 SE Bay Boulevard, 
Newport, Oregon. 
  
Commissioners Present: Walter Chuck (Pos. #1), President; Ken Brown (Pos. #4), Vice-President; 
Patricia Patrick-Joling (Pos. #5), Secretary/Treasurer; Stewart Lamerdin (Pos. #3); and Steve Beck (Pos. 
#2). 
 
Management and Staff: Kevin Greenwood, General Manager; Stephen Larrabee, Director of Finance; 
Rick Fuller, Director of Operations; and Karen Hewitt, Administrative Assistant. 
 
Members of the Public and Media: Mark Miranda, Newport Police Dept.; Yale Fogarty, ILWU; Wayde 
Dudley, Port Volunteer Mates; Barb Dudley, Port Volunteer Mates; Lee Fries, Port Volunteer Mates; 
Ralph Busby, Newport City Council; Pat Ruddiman, ILWU; Jim Shaw, South Beach resident; Derrick 
Tokos, City of Newport; Dick Anderson, Lincoln City resident; Kiera Morgan, KYTE; Dennis Anstine, 
Newport News-Times. 

II. CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
 
There were no changes to the agenda. 
 

III. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Mark Miranda, Newport Police Department, advised the Commission that the ODOT pm closures on 
Route 20 were postponed again until August 14, 2016, with reevaluation. The Police Department staff 
levels, due to vacations and injuries, is short but maintaining. There are currently 3 officers in training, 
one of whom is a transfer from another agency expected to train on a fast track. The Police Department is 
down 3 people: one from last June plus two new positions approved by City Council. The Department is 
now recruiting but has received very few applicants. There will be two additional openings due to 
retirements in the new year. Miranda distributed recruiting materials to the Commission to distribute to 
people they thought would be a good candidate. 
 

IV. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
A. Minutes 
 1. Commission Special Meeting June 21, 2016 
 2. Regular Commission Meeting June 21, 2016 
B. Financial Report 
C. Pacific Northwest Waterways Association Membership Dues 
D. Good Sam Membership Fee 
E. Special Use Permit – Newport Bay to Brews ½ Marathon & 10K 10/15/16 
F. Special Use Permit – U-DA-MAN Fishing Tournament 10/7 – 10/8/2016 
 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 5 of 133



Patrick-Joling asked that item D. Good Sam Membership Fee be removed from the Consent Calendar. 
Beck notes that a correction needed to be made to the minutes for the Commission Special Meeting 
6/21/16, page 4 of 103 in the Meeting Packet, line 9, “Beck” should be changed to “Lackey.” 
 
A motion was made by Patrick-Joling and seconded by Beck to approve the Consent Calendar as 
amended. The motion passed 5 – 0. 
 

V. CORRESPONDENCE/PRESENTATIONS 
 

There were not correspondence or presentations. 
 

VI. OLD BUSINESS 
 

A.   Items Removed from Consent Calendar 
 
 1.  Good Sam Membership Fee 
 
Patrick-Joling said she was concerned about the $6,100 expense and that there was some digital, web 
information, but a significant portion was for print advertising. Larrabee said that the Port had been with 
Good Sam for over 10 years. He added that Good Sam recognizes the digital trend and is moving over 
time from print to adding digital media. Larrabee said that a lot of the RVers are older and are used to the 
print material. The membership is a package deal and we have been given a discount on the fee. Good 
Sam is the #1 publication for the RV world, and includes park ratings. Patrick-Joling asked if the Port is 
tracking how RVers have heard about our park. Larrabee said we can track the discounts, which are 
approximately 75% of those staying in the RV Park. Good Sam also tracks direct jumps to our website 
from their website, which were approximately 2500 in the past year. Larrabee agreed with Patrick-Joling 
that the fee was large, but there are 1000’s of Good Sam members. Patrick-Joling said she wanted to 
explore and see what else is out there. Larrabee said he could ask staff to call around and see what else is 
being used, and request lower rates from Good Sam. Patrick-Joling suggested FMCA would be another 
option. Lamerdin noted that the occupancy numbers in the park are not decreasing, and Larrabee added 
that revenue numbers are up. Beck said that tourism in the area has increased over the last four years, 
helped by City committee work. The room taxes collected go in part to Destination Newport. Patrick-
Joling said that a lot of businesses have eliminated print advertising and suggested the RV Park could 
forego this for a year and see what we had. Greenwood recommended that for this year the Port continue 
with Good Sam. Lamerdin said he is reluctant to mess with a working system without more research. 
Chuck added the Port could ask Good Sam customers if they would come back if the discount were 
discontinued and where they heard about the RV Park. 
 
A motion was made by Brown and seconded by Beck to approve the Good Sam Membership and 
Fee. The motion passed 5 – 0. 
 
B.   Accounts Paid 
 
Ken Brown declared a conflict of interest because of payments made to Les Schwab. A motion was 
made by Patrick-Joling and seconded by Jincks to accept the accounts paid. The motion passed 
4 – 0. 
 
C. International Terminal Shipping Facility Update 
 
Greenwood introduced the agenda item and staff report. Greenwood said that Hampton Affiliates had 
successfully lobbied against the ITSF, wrongly classifying this project as job exporting. The Port is 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 6 of 133



looking at other funding sources for the ITSF. Kevin advised that EDA is cautious about any funding 
from them going toward TIGER and would like to see those funds going to separate parts of the project. 
Greenwood hopes to resubmit to EDA within 30 days. The EDA grant would be a 50% match so 
additional funds would be required. The TIGER financing plan needs to be finalized by the end of 
October to keep the grant. The Commission and staff will need to discuss funding from the $2MM loan, 
NOAA fund and the General Fund to keep the project moving forward. There will be tough decisions to 
make. Beck and Patrick-Joling both asked if an alternative use for the ITSF could be found in the 
meantime to generate income. Greenwood said there had been some discussion about down-sizing the 
project, but 9 acres is about as small an area that would be practical. He added that the Port would not 
want to show other uses while pursuing current grant funds. Greenwood said the soil sampling had been 
done and other activity completed to keep the permits active. He added that completion of the ITSF 
project was a 50-50 proposition at this point, which would have long term ramifications for Port projects. 
The ITSF project was intended to generate income to finance fishing docks maintenance. The upcoming 
Coastal Economic Summit would be an opportunity to discuss the project as a job creator with the 
potential for other products to counter Hampton Affiliates arguments. Brown agreed to act as a liaison 
with Teevin on the project. 
 

VII. New Business 
 

A. Election of Commission Officers 
 
Greenwood introduced the agenda item and staff report. He said the option of nominating a plank was 
used in the past and was an easier process.  
 
A motion was made by Beck and seconded by Lamerdin to nominate Chuck for President, Brown 
for Vice-President, and Patrick-Joling as Secretary/Treasurer as a plank. The motion passed 5 – 0. 
 

B. Resolution 2016-06 Creating a Commercial Fishing Users Group Committee 
 
Greenwood introduced the agenda item and staff report. Greenwood said he had also discussed the 
Committee idea with Kaety Jacobsen of the OSU Marine Fisheries Extension. Beck asked who had raised 
the idea of a Fishing Committee. Greenwood said he had spoken with Commissioners one-on-one and 
some interest was expressed. He said his original draft had nine members, and adding a long-liner and 
direct market seller were Jacobsen’s suggestions. Greenwood said he had reviewed the proposal with 
Jacobsen and she shared with the FINE county-wide group. Chuck said that he had dealt with FINE and 
received good feedback. Since the Port Docks support the bulk of the fishing fleet, it would be good for 
them to have a venue. Patrick-Joling asked if the Committee were formed, how its actions be delivered to 
the Commission. Greenwood said that most of the Committee’s activity would be driven by requests from 
the Commission for the Committee’s input. Information would be delivered to the Commission through 
Minutes and Staff Reports. For example, the Committee could vet capital improvement priorities and find 
opportunities for funding those improvements. 
 
Beck asked about the two Commission members suggested, and whether this would be in lieu of an ex 
officio representation. Greenwood acknowledged there were different options for Commission 
involvement. After discussion, the Commissioners agreed to have one Commissioner as an ex officio, 
non-voting member of the Committee rather than two voting members. Lamerdin commented that the 
recommendation included a lot of specific people and it may be better to have a larger pool; Greenwood 
said there could be alternates. Some of the members may be out fishing when the meetings are scheduled, 
but there should still be a quorum. Greenwood said this Committee would be subject to public meeting 
and records rules, including what constitutes a quorum. By-laws would be required. The budget 
implications for the Committee would be related to staff time, with the North Commercial Harbormaster, 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 7 of 133



the NIT Supervisor, and the Administrative Assistant supporting the Committee. Greenwood 
recommended adopting the Resolution as amended. 
 
A motion was made by Patrick-Joling and seconded by Beck to adopt Resolution 2016-06 Creating 
a Commercial Fishing Users Group Committee as amended. The motion passed 5 – 0. 
 
C. IGA w/ City of Newport for Bay Front Parking District Extension 
 
Greenwood introduced the Agenda Item and Staff Report.  Brown asked how the Port has benefitted from 
the Parking District. Derrick Tokos said there was concern about the fairness of the payments. The Port 
has had representatives from the Port actively participating, and the District has opened lines of 
communication between the tourism and fishing industries. The Parking District extension was looking to 
conduct a parking study before taking more significant steps. Brown said the parking permits at the Port 
which were introduced to recoup payments to the District were an inconvenience to fishermen, and he 
does not see the Port getting value from the District. Greenwood clarified that there is concern about the 
proportionality of the payments among participants. Tokos said the Port contribution was a figure 
negotiated with David Jincks and Don Mann. $20,000 of the Parking District funds comes from members, 
and the rest from a trust. Lamerdin asked what other businesses were paying. Tokos said Trident was 
paying $600, based on employer program. Depending on the results of the study, funds may be used to 
pave additional parking areas on Port property. Lamerdin when a decision about the Port’s participation 
would be needed. Greenwood said the District loosely matches the fiscal year, which ended June 30th, and 
suggested tabling for one month with a work session scheduled on August 23rd. Lamerdin asked for a 
more detailed breakdown of contributions. Brown said he rejected the IGA. No action was taken. 
 
D. Resolution 2016-07 Amending Hiring Policy 
 
Larrabee introduced proposed Resolution. He said that Port management discussed policies that would 
attract, train, motivate and keep employees. This Resolution was drafted to tighten up the hiring policy to 
meet these goals. The three tier structure allows for growth opportunities within the Port. Management 
would share the policy with staff. 

 
A motion was made by Patrick-Joling and seconded by Brown to adopt Resolution 2016-07 
Amending the Personnel Policy Manual to Adopt a Revised Hiring Policy. The motion passed 5 – 0.  

 
VIII. DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS 

 
A.  Director of Finance 
 
Larrabee introduced the Director of Finance Report and June Occupancy Report. 
 
B.  Director of Operations 
 
Fuller introduced the Director of Operations Report. He said he had met with 6 engineers, and RFP 
proposals were due Friday, July 29th. He wants to have a selection committee of 5 members, and offered 
that one of those members be a Commissioner. Lamerdin agreed to participate on the selection 
committee. Fuller said that the Port Volunteer Mates had done an excellent job on their projects, and they 
were working well with the Department Heads. They will be working at the International Terminal. 
Lamerdin added that he agreed the Mates had done excellent work and felt fortunate they were a part of 
the Port. Chuck also thanked the Mates. 

 
 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 8 of 133



C.  General Manager 
 
Greenwood introduced the General Manager Report. 
 

1. Rogue Brewery Mural 
 
The mural was discussed at the noon Work Session. A Work Session will be scheduled for August 23rd 
for further discussions. 
 

2. Highway 20 Construction 
 
There was no discussion on this item. 
 

3. DulsEnergy Lease/MOU 
 
Greenwood said the DulsEnergy project had taken a step back as they look for investors.  
 

4. Coastal Economic Summit, North Bend, Oregon, August 8 – 9 
 
Greenwood said he would be attending the Summit and asked if any Commissioners were interested in 
attending they should contact Port staff. 
 

5. Re-zoning Consideration for August 23rd 
 
Greenwood said the rezoning opportunity looked good, and could be fine-tuned when actual projects 
emerged. The City recommended that commercial opportunities would be best on the side of the lot 
toward Englund Marine, and marine support on the Port Dock side. Greenwood added that he appreciated 
the rezoning opportunity presented to him by Derrick Tokos. Tokos said the City of Newport would incur 
the costs of rezoning but would appreciate feedback from the Commission about location. The 
Commission consensus was for the option 2 rezoning. 
 

6. New Flood Preliminary Maps are rolling out this summer 
 
Greenwood commented that a significant amount of Port development happens in the flood zone. 
Greenwood thanked Tokos for bringing the upcoming changes in regulations to his attention. The changes 
could include increased setback and mitigation. The OPPA meeting in Salem on Thursday July 28th and 
conference in Astoria in September may address this issue. 
 

7. Personal Notes are Public Records 
 
Lamerdin asked if highlighting only would be considered notes. Hewitt responded that since that did not 
create an additional record, highlighted agendas or packets would not need to be included. 
 

8. Recreational Immunity 
 
There was no discussion on this item. 
 

IX. COMMISSIONER REPORTS 
 
Patrick-Joling said she had attended Association of Pacific Ports' 103rd Annual Conference in Port 
Hueneme, CA. She found it fascinating, with good networking opportunities and good speakers. Paul N. 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 9 of 133



Jaenichen, Sr. - Maritime Administrator, MARAD, spoke about cargo shipping. Germany has 66%, while 
the U.S. has 2%, the lowest in 100 years. He called for beefing up port infrastructure and would be happy 
to speak at conferences held in Newport in future years. Patrick-Joling will share more at the next 
Commission meeting. 
 

X. CALENDAR/FUTURE CONSIDERATIONS 
 

A. 7/15 – 8/26 Shop at the Dock, Fridays  
B. 8/12 – NOAA Anniversary Salute  
C. 8/13 – 8/15 Great Albacore Tuna BBQ Challenge  
D. 8/19 – 8/21 Lincoln County Fair  
E. 8/27 – 8/29 Salmon Enchanted Evening  
F. 9/5 – Labor Day, Port Office Closed  
G. 9/10 – MDR Charity Car Show  
 
Chuck said in past years, the Commission Meetings in November and December were held on the third 
Tuesday instead of the fourth because of the holidays, and suggested the same be done this year; the 
Commission agreed. Chuck will not be here for the Commission Meetings on August 23rd.  Patrick-Joling 
will not be able the Commission Meetings on September 27th and October 25th, and asked if they could be 
moved. Chuck said the September meeting will not be moved, but the October meeting will be moved to 
October 18th. 

 
XI. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
Wayde Dudley said getting workers away from parking on the bay front was the biggest parking issue. 
 
Jim Shaw commented that at the Salmon Enchanted Evening last year, 6 aircraft from Seattle arrived and 
were disappointed because they expected a salmon dinner and only got hors d’oeuvres. These 6 are not 
returning. Chuck advised that the Port does not run the event, just provides the space. As to the 
Fishermen’s Committee, their main issue is moorage, not product. 
 
Barb Dudley said as to Good Sam membership, she knows a lot of elderly RVers don’t use the internet 
and won’t stay anywhere but a Good Sam park. There are caravans of RVers who rely on the Good Sam 
book. 
 

XII. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 7:45 pm. 

 
 

 ATTESTED: 

 

 

Walter Chuck  
President 

 Patricia Patrick-Joling 
Secretary/Treasurer 

 
-###- 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 10 of 133



Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 11 of 133



Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 12 of 133



Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 13 of 133



Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 14 of 133



Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 15 of 133



Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 16 of 133



Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 17 of 133



Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 18 of 133



Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 19 of 133



Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 20 of 133



Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 21 of 133



Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 22 of 133



PORT OF NEWPORT 
RESOLUTION NO. 2016-   

 
A RESOLUTION DESIGNATING BANK ACCOUNTS AND AUTHORIZING CHECK SIGNERS 

 
WHEREAS, the Port of Newport is a port organized under ORS 777; and 

 
WHEREAS, ORS 777.405 states money of a port shall be deposited in one or more banks 

designated by the board. Funds shall be withdrawn only when previously ordered by the board upon a 
check signed and countersigned by such persons as may be authorized by resolution of the board; and 

 
WHEREAS, By-laws for the Port of Newport Board of Commissioners Sec. 17(A) states that all 

Commissioners are eligible to sign checks upon approval; and 
 
WHEREAS, Resolution 2015-13 approved September 18, 2015 was the last resolution 

authorizing check signers; and 
 
WHEREAS, Steve Beck replaced David Jincks as Position #2 upon being sworn in to office on 

June 21, 2016; NOW THEREFORE, 
 

THE PORT OF NEWPORT BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1.  Authorized Signers. The Commission authorizes the five members of the Port of 
Newport Board of Commissioners, the General Manager and the Director of Finance to be signers on 
designated bank accounts. 

 
A. Walter Chuck ................................................................................................. Position #1 
B. Steve Beck .................................................................................................... Position #2 
C. Stewart Lamerdin .......................................................................................... Position #3 
D. Ken Brown .................................................................................................... Position #4 
E. Patricia Patrick-Joling .................................................................................... Position #5 
F. Kevin M. Greenwood ........................................................................... General Manager 
G. Stephen J. Larrabee ......................................................................... Director of Finance 
  
 Section 2.   Designated Bank Accounts. The Commission designates the following bank 

accounts: 
 
A. Oregon Coast Bank 
 1.   Operating Checking ............................................................................... General  
 2.   Marina Deposit ...................................................................................... General  
 3.   Payroll .................................................................................................... General  
 4.   PERS ..................................................................................................... General  
 5.   SPWF .................................................................................................... General  
 6.   Operating Checking .................................................................................. NOAA  
 7.   Maintenance & Replacement ................................................................... NOAA  
 8.   Revenue Bond Reserve ........................................................................... NOAA  
 9.   Assignment of Deposits ............................................................................ NOAA  
 10. Operating Checking ........................................................................ Construction  
 11. Money Market ................................................................................. Construction  
 12. GO Fund ........................................................................................ Bonded Debt  
 
B. Columbia Bank 
 1.   Money Market ........................................................................................ General   
 
C. Umpqua Bank 
 1.   Money Market ........................................................................................... NOAA   
 2.   Operating .........................................................................Facilities Maintenance    
 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 23 of 133



Section 3. Rescission. All previous check signers are hereby rescinded from signing on bank 
accounts of the Port of Newport. 

 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS this 23rd day of August, 
2016. 

 
 
       ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________  __________________________________ 
Walter Chuck, President     Patricia Patrick-Joling, Secretary/Treasurer 
 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 24 of 133



 

C O N S E N T  C A L E N D A R  A G E N D A  I T E M  

 

 

    

DATE:   8/19/2016 

RE:  Award of Port Dock 5 Fixed Pier Approach Engineering Contract 

TO:  Kevin Greenwood / Port of Newport Board of Commissioners 

ISSUED BY:  Rick Fuller – Director of Operations 
    

 
 
BACKGROUND  
 
The Port Dock 5 fixed pier approach has been restricted to all unauthorized vehicles due to its current poor 
structural condition.  A 2011 staff assessment and report indicated replacement or significant repair was needed 
to the entire structure within five years. The approved 2016/17 Capital improvement budget lists the PD5 
approach engineering as priority #8 for large projects with a total authorized line item budget amount of $25,000.  
During the months of July and August 2016, Port staff conducted a Request for Proposal (RFP) as attached to 
gain marine engineering cost proposals for the included scope of work.  A selection committee representing staff, 
commission and the fishing industry met on two occasions** to analyze the submitted proposals and subsequently 
interview a short list of two firms. 
 
*Bob Eder of the fishing industry was unable to attend the August 10, 2016 meeting but did attend the interview meeting. 
 

PURPOSE, SCOPE AND DETAIL 
 
The purpose of the Request for Proposal was to receive engineering services proposals that will 
provide three conceptual designs, solutions, and cost estimates for the replacement or long term repair 
of the fixed pier structure.  Please see the scope of work included in the attached RFP. 
 
For the RFP process, six (6) qualified engineering firms were contacted.  Five (5) firms responded with 
submittals per the RFP deadline.  On August 10, 2016 the selection committee consisting of 
Commissioner Stewart Lamerdin, General Manager Kevin Greenwood, Interim Harbor Master Kent, 
and Director of Operations Rick Fuller met, qualified, scored and shortlisted the submittals down to two 
firms selected for a phone interview.  The Best Value Analysis sheet is attached for your review.  On 
August 18, 2016 PND Engineering and OBEC Engineering each participated in a phone interview 
which the selection committee** discussed and graded.  OBEC Engineering was selected for 
recommendation to the General Manager and the Commission for approval. 
 
*Bob Eder of the fishing industry attending. 
 
OPTIONS 
 

1.  Approve the recommendation of the selection committee 
2.  Do not approve the recommendation of the selection committee  

 
BUDGET IMPLICATIONS 
 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 25 of 133



 

 

 
 

  

$25,000 was appropriated and budgeted in the 2016/2017 capital outlay budget for. OBEC Engineering 
proposed bid breakdown total proposal is $24,930 remaining within the authorized budgeted line item 
for engineering services. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends: that the Commission authorize the General Manager to enter into negotiation 
resulting in an engineering services contract with OBEC Engineering for an amount not to 
exceed Twenty Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000). 

 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 26 of 133



Page 1    RFP PD5 Dock Approach 2016 - Professional Services   Rev 07/16 

 

 

 

 

 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

 
  

PROJECT:  PD5 Fixed Pier Approach - Structural Renovation Design 

LOCATION:  Port of Newport - Port Dock 5 Newport, OR 

DUE:   July 29, 2016, 2:00pm PST 
 

Proposals on this project will be accepted by Hand Delivery, Mail, Fax, PDF via email. 

 

SUBMIT TO:  Port of Newport   C/O General Manager  Phone:  (541) 265-7758 

   600 SE Bay Boulevard     Fax: (541) 265-4235 

   Newport, OR 97365    Email:  khewitt@portofnewport.com 

   

CONTACT:  Rick Fuller 541.265.7758 

   rfuller@portofnewport.com 

 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 

1. Schedule for Work: Start: 8/24/16   Completion: TBD 

Time is of the essence.  All attempts at improving the schedule will be made by the consultant 

 

2. General Description:  Port Dock 5 located on Bay Front Boulevard Newport, OR is the main dock for Oregon’s 

largest commercial fishing fleet. The main fixed pier approach is an aging wooden structure requiring extensive 

repair or replacement of its wooden piling foundation.  Due to the unknown severity of its current structural 

capacity, vehicular traffic has been restricted to the first fifty five feet of its two hundred ten foot length. The 

approach is the only access to concrete floating dock system which is connected by an aluminum ramp system 

renovated in 2012. The approach is critical to the function of the Port and requires a long term solution for its 

replacement or repair. 24/7 access to the dock system must be managed and maintained.  The Port of Newport 

Commission has authorized staff to proceed with acquiring engineering feasibility proposals offering a minimum of 

three conceptual engineered solutions with construction estimates for future budgetary planning and scheduling. 

 

3. Submittal Requirements:   

 

A. Documented site visit.  Contact project contact for appointment. 

B. Qualifications  of  your  firm  and  all  staff  (including  sub-consultants)  proposed  to  perform  the  

work on this project.  Include details of experience your firm has with Marine design. 

C. A list of similar projects completed in the last seven years.    Particular relevant are projects with grant 

type construction funding. 

D. A list of critical issues that the consultant considers to be of importance for the project. 

E. A  scope  of  work  for  the  proposed  design  and management  of  the  project.  Include an approach to 

quality control, project management, and team communication. Upon award of selection, the scope of 

work will be revised with Port staff to formulate the final scope of work for the project. 

F. References  from  at  least  three  other  projects  with  similar  requirements  that  have  been  

completed within  the  past  seven  years  and  that  have  involved  the  staff  proposed  to  work  on  

this  project.    As part  of  the  reference  check  process,  the  Port may  choose  to  visit  one  or  more  

of  the  listed projects and/or request a copy of the plans and documentation completed. 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 27 of 133



Page 2    RFP PD5 Dock Approach 2016 - Professional Services   Rev 07/16 

G. A sample plan and profile sheet(s) of a similar project.    Examples should be no smaller than 11”x17”. 

H. Consultant’s willingness to enter into the Port of Newport Standard Contract Agreement.  

 

 

 

4. Bid Breakdown:  Provide an  all-inclusive  itemized  budget  for  each  of  the major  phases  in  the  Scope  of  

Work.  Proposals shall be inclusive of all taxes, insurance, overhead, fees, and profit. 

 

5. Proposal Selection:  The Port Manager or appointed persons will evaluate each submitted proposal and report to the 

Port Commission with a recommendation if required.  If required, the Port Commission shall make the final 

selection and reserves the right to reject any proposal not in compliance with all prescribed public bidding 

procedures and requirements, and may reject for good cause any or all proposals upon finding that it is in the public 

interest to do so. The Port will analyze information provided by all Proposers.  The consultant providing the best 

value to the Port of Newport will be selected; the lowest-cost bidder will not necessarily be selected. After 

consultant selection, Port of Newport will enter into any necessary negotiations to reach a final contract. Evaluation 

criteria that will be used are as follows: 

 
A. Qualifications  

a. Qualifications of your firm, staff and any subcontractors  

b. Details of expertise/strengths to complete the scope of work 

c. Experience on projects of similar marine scopes of work  

d. Experience on projects with grant construction funding  

e. References from other similar projects  

f. Proven ability and/or experience estimating total project costs given the Scope of Work 

 

B. Approach  

a. Excellent understanding of the work required for the project  

b. Design approach and ideas that could enhance the quality of service 

c. Approach to value engineering and providing “Best Long-term Value” to the Port of Newport 

d. Approach to cost control, quality control, project management, and team communication 

 

C. Cost  

a. The total of itemized costs of work for each phase in the Scope of Work.  

 

D. Contracting 

a. Willingness to enter into the Port of Newport Standard Contract Agreement (sample included as 

attachment “F”) 

 

 

6. Drawings and Specifications: If applicable, bidder is provided with documents, which are thought to be 

necessary in preparing a proposal.  Bidder is responsible for requesting any other documents/drawings from 

references in the scope of work that would be necessary to prepare a complete proposal.  The Port of Newport 

will accommodate all requests equally through addendum to the best of its ability. 

 

7. Insurance:  Upon acceptance, contractor will provide proof of proper business licensing and registration in the State 

of Oregon, and will maintain all required licensing and permits required by Local, State or Federal jurisdictions to 

perform the services of this agreement. Contractor will provide proof of business liability insurance with a minimum 

of $1,700,000 liability coverage and maintain required liability insurance at all times for services and their 

responsible employees while on Port owned property. Contractor will be fully responsible to maintain all employee 

workmen's compensation insurance as mandated by Local, State and Federal requirements. Contractor shall name 

the Port of Newport as an Additional Insured and provide a Certificate of Insurance confirming Liability and 

Workers Compensation with a 30 day Notice of Cancellation, prior to starting any work. Contractor shall pay any 

and all payroll and withholding taxes and any other sums that is required by Local, State or Federal agencies. 

 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 28 of 133



Page 3    RFP PD5 Dock Approach 2016 - Professional Services   Rev 07/16 

8. Prevailing Wages:  The Contractor may be required to pay prevailing wage rates, depending upon the final total 

price of the project, in conformance to ORS 279C.800 thru 279C.870.  A current copy of Prevailing Wage Rates for 

Public Works contracts in Oregon is available from the State of Oregon, Bureau of Labor and Industries.  

 

9.  Boli Fee: The Port, if required, will pay a fee to the Bureau of Labor and Industries pursuant to the provisions of 

ORS 279C.825.  The fee is one-tenth of one percent of the price of this contract, but not less than $100.00 nor more 

than $5,000.00, regardless of the contract price. 

 

10. Nondiscrimination & Affirmative Action:  The Port of Newport is an equal opportunity employer and provider 

and requires all Proposers to comply with policies and regulations concerning equal opportunity.  The Proposer, in 

the performance of this Agreement, agrees not to discriminate in its employment because of an employee’s or 

applicant’s race, religion, national origin, ancestry, sex, age, or physical handicap. 

 

11. Environmental And Natural Resources Laws To Be Observed: In compliance with ORS 279C.525, the 

following is a list of federal, state and local agencies, of which the Port has knowledge, that have enacted ordinances 

or regulations relating to environmental pollution and the preservation of natural resources that may affect the 

performance of the Contract:  

 

FEDERAL AGENCIES: 

Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Soil Conservation Service, Department of Defense, Army Corps of 

Engineers, Department of Energy, Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, Environmental Protection Agency, 

Health and Human Services, Department of Housing & Urban Development, Department of Interior, Bureau of 

Land Management 

 

STATE AGENCIES: 

Department of Agriculture, Soil and Water Conservation Commission, Department of Energy, Department of 

Environmental Quality, Department of Fish and Wildlife, Department of Forestry, Division of State Lands, Water 

Resources Department 

 

LOCAL AGENCIES: 

Bureau of Reclamation, Geological Survey,  U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Department of Labor     Occupation 

Safety and Health Administration, Water Resources Council, City Councils, Board of County Commissioners. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 29 of 133



Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 30 of 133



Page 4    RFP PD5 Dock Approach 2016 - Professional Services   Rev 07/16 

PD5 Fixed Pier Approach - Structural Renovation Design 

SCOPE OF WORK 

 

Provide all labor, supervision, expendables, submittals, and incidentals necessary to complete all work implied 

as follows: 

 

1. Description: The Port Dock 5 fixed pier approach is an aging wooden structure requiring extensive repair or 

replacement of its wooden piling foundation.  Due to the unknown severity of its current structural 

capacity, vehicular traffic has been restricted to the first fifty five feet of its two hundred ten foot length. 

The approach is the only access to concrete floating dock system which is connected by an aluminum 

ramp system renovated in 2012. The approach is critical to the function of the Port and requires a long 

term solution for its replacement or repair. 24/7 access to the dock system must be managed and 

maintained.  The scope of work consists of engineering feasibility proposals offering a minimum of 

three conceptual engineered solutions with construction estimates for future budgetary planning and 

scheduling. 

 
 

2. Project limits: The project is limited to the 210’ x 50’ Port Dock 5 fixed wooden pier structure only.  

 

3. Conceptual design: 

a) Provide minimum of three conceptual engineered solutions for the replacement or repair of the existing 

210’ x 50’ fixed pier structure. 
b) Provide construction estimates for each solution offered including design development, construction 

drawings, permits, general conditions and construction costs. 

c) Consideration must be given to the replacement of the entire structure vs. foundation piling & bracing 

only. 

d) Design will consider a Class 5 gross vehicle weight rating (GVWR) range from 16001–19500 lb.  

e) Consideration must be given to 24/7 public dock accessibility during construction along with 

continuous service of fuel, water, and electrical services. 

f) Design will consider the future construction of a permanent and alternate access to the PD5 floating 

dock system originating from Port of Newport owned property. 

 

4. Other:  

a) Successful consultant will provide a project summary and conclusion outlining a best value analysis and 

steps for future consideration with project milestones. 

 

5. Work specifically excluded from this scope of work: 

a) Structural testing, inspection, reporting 

b) Soils testing or characterization  

  

6. Attachments: 
a) Structural report dated May 11, 2011 

b) Location map 

c) PD5 ramp replacement dwg 

d) GRI pile driving report 1-13-2012 

e) Photos 

f) Professional services agreement 
 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 31 of 133



Best Value Analysis:  PD5 Fixed Pier Aproach - Structural Renovation Design

Reviewed By:                                                                 Date:

Company Mott-MacDonald SHN Engineering PND Engineers KPFF Engineering OBEC Stuntzner Engineering

Contact Diana Walker Ron Stillmaker Bill Gunderson Stuart Finney Jenny Carlson Ralph Dunham

Phone 206.316.0280 541.266.9890 206.624.1387 503.227.3251 360.334.3250 541.267.2872

Email diana.walker@mottmacna.comrstillmaker@shn-engr.comBGunderson@pndengineers.comralph@stuntzner.com jcarlson@obec.com ralph@stuntzner.com

CCB#

Criteria

Mandatory site visit 7/21/2016 7/25/2016 7/25/2016 7/20/2016 7/18/2016 ----

Proposal received 7/29/2016 7/29/2016 7/28/2016 7/29/2016 7/29/2016 ----

Qualifications (35 Points)

Qualifications of the firm, staff and any subcontractors 

Details of expertise/strengths to complete the scope of work

Experience on projects of similar marine scopes of work 

Experience on projects with grant construction funding 

References from other similar projects 

Proven ability and/or experience estimating total project costs 

given the Scope of Work

TOTAL 28.25 24.25 30.5 26.5 33 0

Design Aproach (40 Points)
Excellent understanding of the work required for the project 

Design approach and ideas that could enhance the quality of 

service
Approach to value engineering and providing “Best Long-term 

Value” to the Port of Newport
Approach to cost control, quality control, project 

management, and team communication

TOTAL
36.25 30 36.25 29.25 37 0

Cost  (25 Points)

Itemized costs for  COMPARED work scope

TOTAL
20.5 18.25 20.25 1.25 23.75 0

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 32 of 133

mailto:diana.walker@mottmacna.com
mailto:jcarlson@obec.com


TOTAL ALL POINTS (100 Possible)
85 72.5 87 57 93.75 0

RANKING (1-5)
3 4 2 5 1

Notes

Decline - NO Bid

Questions:

1 Describe your success with actual vs conceptual budgets

2 Does the proposal provide for public presentation/comment?

3 What steps will be taken to guarantee constructability - Permitting, contruction, ADA, DEQ, ACOE, DSL, Geotechnical

4 Give an example of a project estimate gone wrong.  Why?

5 Discuss the constraint of keeping the 

6 How will you address stakeholder input into the design process

7 What is your experience with mitigation issues and opportunities

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 33 of 133



Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 34 of 133



Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 35 of 133



Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 36 of 133



Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 37 of 133



From: Kevin Greenwood
To: Stewart Lamerdin
Cc: Rick Fuller; Karen Hewitt
Subject: Re: Confidence in bid selection for PD5
Date: Friday, August 19, 2016 2:07:38 PM

Stewart,

Thanks for your participation in the selection process. I'll be sure Karen includes this email in
the board packet supporting the contract award. Travel safe and we'll see you when you're
back in town.

Kevin
(541) 265-7758
(541) 961-9517 cell

Sent from my iPhone

On Aug 19, 2016, at 2:02 PM, Stewart Lamerdin <slamerdin@portofnewport.com> wrote:

Kevin,

After participating in a careful review of all 5 proposals and the subsequent round of phone
interviews, I wanted to reiterate my support for the selection of OBEC Consulting Engineers
for the Port Dock 5 engineering study.

The proposal submitted by OBEC was clearly laid out and addressed all the criteria included
in the RFP.  They presented themselves very professionally during the phone interview and
I feel they are best suited to deliver the types of engineering designs appropriate for our
project.

If you or any of the commissioners have any questions regarding my support for this
decision, please contact me directly and I would be happy to discuss this further.

Regards,

Stewart

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 38 of 133

mailto:/O=MEX05/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=KGREENWOOD081
mailto:slamerdin@portofnewport.com
mailto:rfuller@portofnewport.com
mailto:khewitt@portofnewport.com
mailto:slamerdin@portofnewport.com


C O N S E N T  C A L E N D A R  A G E N D A  I T E M  
 

 
    

DATE:    August 23, 2016 

RE: IGA w/ City of Newport for Bay Front Parking District Extension  

TO: Board of Commissioners 

ISSUED BY:  General Manager 
    

 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Last month, the Port Commission reviewed the IGA but was reluctant to approve based upon a few 
concerns. Specifically, the Commission wanted to review the list of participants and their contributions, 
projects completed out of the district funds and a review of the committee membership. I have talked to 
the City and feel that the Port and fishing community are more than represented by its participation in 
the District, which sunsets in two years. 
 
ITEMS OF CONCERN 
 
List of district members and rates for participation. 
Included in your packet is the list of businesses participating in the district. Even though many of the 
large processors are paying much less than the Port, their operations are 24/7 including three shifts 
with many employees getting to work via public or corporate transportation (vans). The fleet – at times 
– can use parking spaces for as long as 72 hours straight. 
 
List of projects completed by the city. 
Included in your packet is a memo from Derrick Tokos to the Newport City Council summarizing the 
activities of the district with a review of the cash balances. 
 
List of committee members. 
Of the six committee members, half are represented by port/fishing interests: Gary Ripka, Mike Pettis 
and myself. Laura Anderson, Cris Torp and Janet Webster are the other members. 
 
TERMS OF THE AGREEMENT 
 

- Port continues to $6,000 annually into the Bay Front Area Economic Improvement District. This 
represents the commercial fishing industries impacts to parking as well. 

- City will complete a parking study plan that will review a number of options for parking 
improvements. 

- By participating, the Port is eligible to receive improvements and the Port/fleet will continue to 
have three seats on the committee. 

 
 
 
 
  

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 39 of 133



ANALYSIS 
 
Though the Port and fishing industry are the largest contributors to the parking district, we also have the 
most votes on the committee. In this regard, I feel that we are adequately represented in the decision 
making process. There also appears have been improvements benefitting the port such as expanding 
the Lee St. parking lot, improved sidewalks across from Port Dock 5 and striping of additional parking 
spaces at Port Dock 7. The City is also exploring other capital improvements that could be a benefit to 
the Port and fleet. From a purely financial review, it appears those improvements, in aggregate, cost 
close to the $24,000 contribution over the last four years; but the real benefit is having an active voice 
in the decision making on bay front parking. 
  
RECOMMENDATION 
 
I would recommend that a Commissioner make a MOTION TO AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL 
MANAGER TO SIGN THE INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY REGARDING 
PORT PARTICIPATION IN THE BAY FRONT AREA PARKING SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS AND 
APPROVING THE $6,000 ANNUAL CONTRIBUTION FOR THE NEXT TWO YEARS . 
 

-###- 

 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 40 of 133



AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF NEWPORT AND THE PORT OF NEWPORT 

REGARDING PORT PARTICIPATION IN BAY FRONT AREA 
PARKING SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS 

 
 
 This Intergovernmental Agreement is between the Port of Newport, a port 
district organized under ORS Chapter 777 (“Port”) and the City of Newport (“City”). 
 
 Both entities are units of local government, organized and operated under 
the laws of the state of Oregon.  Oregon Revised Statutes, Chapter 190 specifically 
authorizes agreements between units of local government for any and all functions 
and activities that any party to the Agreement may perform. 
 

RECITALS 
 

A. On October 6, 2011 Port and City entered into an Intergovernmental 
Agreement (“Agreement”) outlining Port’s roles and responsibilities in regards to 
an Economic Improvement District (“District”) that the City formed in the Bay Front 
area to fund parking system improvements. The Agreement included a 
commitment by the Port to make an annual monetary contribution to the District on 
its behalf and that of the fisherman mooring at Port facilities. 

 
B. The Agreement was to terminate at such time as the City ordinance 

establishing the District (Ordinance No. 2020) was repealed or expired.  On June 
20, 2016, City extended the expiration date of the District by two (2) years so that 
a parking study can be performed to establish if the District should continue in its 
current form or whether alternative approaches should be pursued to address the 
areas parking needs (Ordinance No. 2098).  The new expiration date of the District 
is June 30, 2018.  The parking study is funded, in part, by the District. 

 
C. Port is assisting with the preparation of the parking study and supports its 

completion.  Accordingly, Port agrees to this Amendment No. 1 to its Agreement 
with the City, to extend its expiration date by two (2) years so that it aligns with the 
new District expiration date. 
 

TERMS OF AGREEMENT 
 
1. Port Obligations.  Port shall pay $6,000 annually at the end of each fiscal 

year to City.  This amount represents Port’s contribution to the Bay Front 
Area Economic Improvement District. 

 
2. City Obligations 
 

a. Upon execution of this Agreement by both parties, City agrees to complete 
a parking study for the Bay Front area as outlined in its contract with 
Lancaster Street Labs, dated February 11, 2016. 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 41 of 133



 
b. Upon receipt of Port’s annual payment, City shall place such amounts into 

the account City shall create for business license surcharge fees pursuant 
to Ordinance No. 2020, §3(f). 

 
3. Term of Agreement.  The term of this Agreement shall be two (2) years, 

commencing upon the effective date of City Ordinance No. 2098. Upon 
completion of this two-year term, the parties may elect to extend this 
Agreement by written amendment for the duration of any City Council 
extension of District per Ordinance No. 2020, §11.] 

 
4. Effect of Payments.  Port payments made under §1 of this Agreement represent 

Port’s voluntary participation in the Bay Front Area Economic Improvement 
District.  In exchange for this participation, Port properties will be eligible for 
receipt of parking system improvements and the Port shall be represented on 
the District Advisory Committee, pursuant to §5(b) of Ordinance No. 2020. 

 
5. Termination.  This Agreement terminates at such time as City Ordinance No. 

2020 is repealed or expires.  In the event that the City Council makes further 
amendments to Ordinance No. 2020 during the term of this Agreement, Port 
may elect to terminate the Agreement.  A decision by the Port to terminate the 
Agreement shall be made in writing, within 30 days of the effective date of the 
amendment to Ordinance No. 2020. 

 
6. Notice.  All notice required under this Agreement shall be written and sent to 

the parties at the following addresses: 
 
   City of Newport     
   Attention: City Manager 
   169 SW Coast Highway 
   Newport, Oregon 97365 
 
   Port of Newport 
   Attention: General Manager 
   600 SE Bay Boulevard 
   Newport, Oregon 97365 
 
7. Attorney Fees.  If either party commences any arbitration, legal action, suit, or 

proceeding against the other to rescind, interpret or enforce the terms of this 
Agreement, the parties agree that the prevailing party shall be awarded 
reasonable attorney’s fees and costs incurred in any such arbitration, action, 
suit or proceeding and in any later appeals filed as a consequence thereof.  
Such costs shall bear interest at the statutory legal rate from the date incurred, 
until the date paid. 

 
8. Severability.  If any part, term or clause of this contract is held by a court or 

arbitrator to be unenforceable, of no effect or in conflict with any law, the validity 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 42 of 133



of the remaining provisions and clauses shall not be affected and the rights and 
obligations of the parties shall be construed and in force as if the Agreement 
did not contain the particular part, term or clause held to be unenforceable.   

 
9. Amendments. The terms of this Agreement may be waived, modified, 

supplemented or amended only upon written agreement of both parties. 
 
PORT OF NEWPORT    CITY OF NEWPORT 
 
 
________________________________  ___________________________ 
By: General Manager    By: City Manager 
  
Date: ___________________________  ___________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
F:\1Clients\Muni\Newport, City of\COMMUNITY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT\Bay Front Economic Improvement District\IGA - Bay Front Parking District - (092011) REV DRAFT - CHC.docx 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 43 of 133



Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 44 of 133



Revenue Estimate: Proposed Bay Front Parking District
Current Annual Base Proposed Business

Business Name Address Business License Fee License Surcharge
Apollo’s 836 SW Bay Blvd $150 $100
Auntie Belinda’s Candies 640 SW Bay Blvd $75 $150
Bang Kok Thai Restaurant 855 SW Bay Blvd $75 $150
Barge Inn 3585W Bay Blvd $75 $100
Bay839 S39SWBayBlvd $150 $300
Bay Haven Inn 6085W Bay Blvd $150 $300
Bay Latte 6735W Bay Blvd $75 $150
Boy Market - closed 644 SW Bay Blvd $0 $0
Bay Street Gallery 8595W Bay Blvd $75 $150
Bayscapes Gallery 3335W Bay Blvd $75 $150
Bohemian Candles 3425W Bay Blvd $75 $150
Bornsteins Seafood 813 SW Bay Blvd $300 $600
BowWow Meow 546 SW Bay Blvd $75 $150
Breach the Moon 434 SW Bay Blvd $75 $150
Candy Shoppe 4405W Bay Blvd $75 $150
Capt Reel Deep Sea Fishing 3435W Bay Blvd $75 $150
Chi Boogie 8365W Bay Blvd $75 $150
Chidish Tendencies 342 SW Bay Blvd $75 $150
CrossoverTattoo 338 SW Bay Blvd $75 $150
Doodle Bug 3345W Bay Blvd $75 $150
Fish Peddlers Market/Pacific Shrimp 6175W Bay Blvd $600 $600
Forinash Gallery 8565W Bay Blvd $75 $150
Front Street Marine CLC 113-213 SE Bay Blvd $75 $100
Hallmark Fisheries 361-367 SW Bay Blvd $75 $150
Harpoon Hannah’s 4525W Bay Blvd $150 $300
Harry’s Bait and Tackle 404 SW Bay Blvd $75 $150
Inscapes Gallery 818 SW Bay Blvd $75 $150
Jambo’s World Crafts 458 SW Bay Blvd $75 $150
Kelli’s Treasures 342 SW Bay Blvd $75 $150
Latta’s Fused Glass 6735W Bay Blvd $75 $150
Leatherworks 410-412 SW Bay Blvd $75 $150
Local Ocean Seafood 213 SE Bay Blvd $300 $600
Made in Oregon 3425W Bay Blvd $75 $150
Main Sail 3385W Bay Blvd $75 $150
Marine Discovery Tours 345 SW Bay Blvd $150 $300
Mo’s Annex 6S7 SW Bay Blvd $300 $600
Mo’s Main Restaurant 622-626 SW Bay Blvd $300 $600
Newport Candle 424 SW Bay Blvd $75 $150
Newport Tradewinds 6535W Bay Blvd $75 $150
Noodle Café 8375W Bay Blvd $75 $150
Northwest Kitchens 420 SW Bay Blvd $75 $150
Ocean Blue @ Gino’s 808 SW Bay Blvd $75 $150
Oceanic Arts 4445W Bay Blvd $75 $150
Old Bayfront Bizarre 620 SW Bay Blvd $75 $150
Oregon Undersea Gardens 267 SW Bay Blvd $300 $100
Ozone Art Gallery 673 SW Bay Blvd $75 $150
Pacific Shrimp Co. (@ Pacific Choice Seafood) 209, 213, and 2455W Bay Blvd $300 $600
Pizza Pot 342 SW Bay Blvd $75 $150
Port Dock 1 Inc 3255W Bay Blvd $150 $100
Port Dock Marina P.O. Box 635 Newport $75 $150
Ripley’s Believe It or Not 250 SW Bay Blvd $150 $100
Rogue Ales 7485W Bay Blvd $150 $300
Round Trip Clothing 602-B SW Bay Blvd $75 $150
Sada’s Restaurant 2505W Bay Blvd $150 $300
Saffron Salmon 859 SW Bay Blvd $150 $300
Sail Inn 1345W Bay Blvd $75 $100
Schiewe Marine 103 SE Bay Blvd $75 $150
Shark’s Seafood Bar 852 SW Bay Blvd $75 $150
The Coffee House 1S6 SW Bay Blvd $75 $150
The Wax Works 2SOSW Bay Blvd $75 $100
Trident Seafood 623 SW Bay Blvd $300 $600
Up Our Alley 602 SW Bay Blvd $75 $150
Vacant (next to Soil Inn) 146 SW Bay Blvd $0 $0
Veal Connection Corp (next to Coast Guard) 8755W Bay Boulevard $0 $0
Wind Drift 4145W Bay Blvd $75 $150

Notes: Total Surcharge: $13,100
Shaded businesses provide off-street parking for customers. Port Contribution: $6,000
All figures are subject to adjustment based upon actual on-site conditions. Estimated Annual Revenue: $19,100

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 45 of 133



Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 46 of 133



BAY BLVD PARKING DISTRICT

Business Name Address Parking Surcharge
Asiatico Sushi Bar Inc 875 SW Bay Blvd
Bay Street Gallery 859 SW Bay Blvd

Bay St Vacation Rental

Saffron Salmon

Republic of Candy 855 SW Bay Blvd
Pier 839 Restuaant & Bar 839 SW Bay Blvd

Vacant 837 SW Bay Blvd

Ocean Beauty Seafood 813 SW Bay Blvd
Pacific Shrimp 761 & 727 SW Bay Blvd
Abbey Street Pier 663-669 SwW Bay Blvd

Bay Latte

Latta Fused_Glass_Gallery

ozone_Art_Gallery

Mo’s Annex 657 SW Bay Blvd

Newport Tradewinds 653 SW Bay Blvd

Trident Seafoods Inc 623 SW Bay Blvd
Pacific Shrimp 617 SW Bay Blvd
Point Adams Packing Co 41 1 SW Bay Blvd

Hallmark Fisheries 367 SW Bay Blvd

Fish Market

Marine Discovery Tours 345 SW Bay Blvd
Vacation Rental Loft

Capt Reel Deep Sea Fishing 343 SW Bay Blvd

Bayscapes Gallery & Coffee Hse 333 Sw Bay Blvd

Closed 325 SW Bay Blvd

Port of Newport 275 SW Bay Blvd

Undersea Garden 267 SW Bay Blvd
Pacific Shrimp 209 SW Bay Blvd

Port of Newport 109 SW Bay Blvd
Port of Newport 318 SE Bay Blvd

City of Newport - Park 333 SE Bay Blvd
Smuggler’s Cove Resort 337 SE Bay Blvd
Lincoln Co Historic Society 333 SE Bay Blvd

Local Ocean Seafood INC 213 SE Bay Blvd

Schiewe Marine Supply 103 SE Bay Blvd

Main Sail Inn 134 SE Bay Blvd
Vacation Rental Loft

The Coffee House 156 SE Bay Blvd

Mariner Enterprises 250 SW Bay Blvd

Vacant

Ripley’s Believe tiThe Wax Works

City of Newport - Park 290 SW Bay Blvd

Doodle Bugs 334 Sw Bay Blvd

Vacant

Made in Oregon 342 SW Bay Blvd

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 47 of 133



Gear Shed Wright & Assoc 342 SW Bay Blvd

Bohemian Candle 342 SW Bay Blvd #H

Seaview Homes 342 SW Bay Blvd #G

Barge Inn

Knotty & Nice Forever 342 SW Bay Blvd #A

358 SW Bay Blvd

Harrys Bait & Tackle 402-404 SW Bay Blvd

Leather Works 410-412 SW Bay Blvd

Burke Butler Properties 414 SW Bay Blvd

Northwest Kitchens 420 SW Bay Blvd

Newport Bay Candles 424 SW Bay Blvd

Ripleys Property 444 SW Bay Blvd

I & I Dispensary 452-454 SW Bay Blvd —

Lighthouse Loft 456 Sw Bay Blvd —

Jambos 458 SW Bay Blvd #1

Round Trip Clothing 602 SW Bay Blvd

Bay Haven Inn 608 SW Bay Blvd

Old Bay Front Bazaar 618 SW Bay Blvd

Mos Ent 622 SW Bay Blvd

Mos 628 Bay LLC 628 SW Bay Blvd

2 Kids Candy Store 640 SW Bay Blvd

Bay Market 644 SW Bay blvd

City of Newport - Park 0 Sw Bay Blvd

Rogue Ales 746-748 SW Bay Blvd

Ocean Blue @ Ginos 808 SW Bay Blvd

Charlotte Boxer 818 SW Bay blvd

Wood Gallery

Apollos 836 SW Bay Blvd

Seafood Restaurant

ISharks Seafood Bar & Steamer 852 SW Bay Blvd

Forinash Gallery 856 SW Bay Blvd

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 48 of 133



City of Newport Community Development 

Department 

Memorandum 
 

To: Newport City Council 

From: Derrick Tokos, Community Development Director 

Date: June 12, 2014 

Re: Parking District Update 

The following is a brief overview and list of accomplishments associated with each of the City’s three 
parking districts (Bay Front, City Center, and Nye Beach).  General observations are included at the end 
of the memo.  Implementing ordinances for each of the three districts are enclosed, and advisory 
committee members have been invited to attend the Council work session and share their observations 
as well. 

Bay Front District  
Created with Ord. No. 2020, effective October 19, 2011 
 

Advisory Committee Members:  Gary Ripka, Janet Webster, Cris Torp, Gabrielle McEntee-Wilson, Mike 
Pettis and Kevin Greenwood. 
 

Resources:  FY 14/15 beginning fund balance of $33,782.  Annual revenue from business license 
surcharge and fixed contribution from the Port of Newport in the amount of $18,900.  District also has 
$231,646 available to it from the old “payment-in-lieu” parking fund. 
 

Accomplishments:  Assessed the viability of expanding the Lee Street parking lot; made targeted 
improvements to pedestrian crossings, sidewalks, and ADA ramps to improve safety; funded striping of 
additional parking spaces at Port Dock 7; assessed and funded construction of a section of sidewalk on 
Bay Street and is exploring opportunities for seasonal shuttle service and funding requirements for 
structured parking. 
 

City Center District 
Created with Ord. No. 2009, effective January 5, 2011 
 

Advisory Committee Members:  Bill Bain, Frank Geltner, and Tom McNamara. 
 

Resources:  FY 14/15 beginning fund balance of $5,051.  Annual revenue from business license 
surcharge in the amount of $3,368. 
 

Accomplishments:  Funded the resurfacing and striping of the 9th and Hurbert parking lot, adjusted the 
location of timed parking and loading zones to improve the availability of parking spaces, and identified 
and corrected barriers to pedestrian movement within the district. 
 

Nye Beach District  
Created with Ord. No. 1993, effective July 1, 2010 
 

Advisory Committee Members:  Jody George, Kathy Cleary, Linda Neigebauer, Wendy Engler, Dave 
Teem. 
 

Resources:  FY 14/15 beginning fund balance of $23,525.  Annual revenue from business license 
surcharge in the amount of $8,700. 
 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 49 of 133



Accomplishments:  Partially funded improvements to 3rd Street sidewalks with the district’s share of the 
“payment-in-lieu” parking funds.  Instituted changes to timed parking limitations in the district by 
standardizing limits at 3-hours and adjusting the type and location of signage and loading areas.  
Additionally, the district instituted a parking sticker program, extended striping for parallel parking on NW 
Coast and NW 3rd Streets, secured changes to parking lot location and directional signage, addressed 
pedestrian obstructions, and funded streetscape enhancements at the entrance to the Nye Beach 
Turnaround.  Existing funds are being reserved as potential contributions towards resurfacing the Nye 
Beach turnaround, sidewalk improvements in the vicinity of the old dry cleaners, or improving lighting 
along NW 3rd Street. 
 
Observations:  Nye Beach has been the most active district, at times meeting as frequently as every 6-
weeks to review the status and provide feedback and general direction on projects.  The district has been 
inactive this year, with a majority of the members volunteering time on the Planning Commission’s Nye 
Beach design review ad-hoc committee.  Bay Front and City Center districts have typically met once or 
twice a year.  Districts could be more active and might potentially accomplish more in the way of projects 
if they had additional staff resources.  This has been a limiting factor. 
 
With that said, the amount of funding generated within each district is not sufficient to pay for major 
improvements to the parking system.  This limits the scope of projects that the parking districts can 
undertake to those associated with maintenance of existing parking and pedestrian improvements, 
correcting and adjusting signage and striping to improve efficiencies, and addressing gaps in the system 
such as missing sidewalk connections.  New or alternate funding sources will need to be pursued if more 
substantial improvements are desired, such as a structured parking lot in the Bay Front or Nye Beach 
areas. 
 
Forming economic improvement or “Parking Districts” that use a business license surcharge to collect 
funds for parking system improvements has proven to be more effective than the previous approach of 
customized “payment-in-lieu” agreements with property owners who could not provide off-street parking 
that would otherwise have been required with new development.  It has been far easier to administer, 
and business owners appear to be satisfied that this approach is ensuring that they are all participating 
in an equitable manner.  By ordinance, the payment-in-lieu system will become the norm again if the 
districts are not extended at the end of the 5 year term, and there should be some thought as to whether 
or not there might be a better alternative. 
 
Creating advisory committees has led to greater involvement from area business owners in the 
management of public parking assets and they have proven to be a very helpful sounding board for city 
staff on projects.  The 3rd Street sidewalk work is a good example, with Public Works staff regularly vetting 
design issues with the committee and committee members participating in public outreach efforts.  
Achieving quorums has been an issue at times with the City Center and Bay Front Districts.  This is due 
to the small size of the City Center Advisory Committee (just three members) and the Bay Front Advisory 
Committee having an even number of representatives from fishing and tourist-oriented business 
interests. 
 
Like the prior “payment-in-lieu” program, parking districts provide relief from a limited number of off-street 
parking spaces for new development or redevelopment.  This has been somewhat helpful, facilitating the 
leasing of vacant retail space in the Bay Front area for example; however, by in large it hasn’t been a 
significant factor.  Providing wholesale relief from off-street parking standards would have a more 
meaningful impact.  This would likely need to be coupled with some sort of funding package sufficient to 
support the construction of new spaces, such as structured parking, in order for it to be feasible given the 
limited supply of parking in Nye Beach and the Bay Front. 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 50 of 133



R
oa

d
w

or
k

on
Pi

on
ee

r

5
...

...
49

.4
...

.0
.l

l

9
50

2
0
0
6

6
.4

3
.7

...
.0

.O
0

O
ne

pr
oj

ec
t

fi
ni

sh
ed

w
el

l
ah

ea
d

of

sc
he

du
le

,a
no

th
er

re
m

ai
ns

on
ho

ld
an

d
w

il
l

li
ke

ly
co

nt
in

ue
pa

st
it

s
an

ti
ci

p
at

ed
co

m
pl

et
io

n,
an

d
a

th
ir

d
is

m
ov

in
g

al
on

g
ni

ce
ly

,
bu

t
w

il
l

re
qu

ir
e

a
fu

ll
cl

os
ur

e
of

U
.S

.
H

ig
hw

ay
20

th
is

w
ee

ke
nd

.
T

he
$8

.5
-m

il
li

on
P

io
ne

er
M

ou
nt

ai
n

m
]a

n
i_

4
0
.4

6
B

y
L

ar
ry

C
oo

nr
od

O
f t

h
e

N
ew

s-
T

im
es

A
ft

er
a

ts
un

am
i

of
pr

ot
es

t
fr

om
th

e
fi

sh
in

g
in

du
st

ry
,N

ew
po

rt
ci

ty
co

un
ci

lo
rs

on
M

on
da

y
pu

t
of

f
an

y
fu

rt
he

r
ac

tio
n

on
a

pr
op

os
ed

B
ay

fr
on

t
pa

rk
in

g
di

st
ri

ct
u
n

til
Se

pt
em

be
r.

N
ew

po
rt

’s
ci

ty
co

de
re

qu
ir

es
bu

si
ne

ss
es

to
pr

ov
id

e
a

ce
rt

ai
n

nu
m

be
r

of
pa

rk
in

g

sp
ac

es
or

pa
y

$1
75

pe
r

re
qu

ir
ed

sp
ac

e
th

ey
ca

nn
ot

pr
ov

id
e.

T
he

m
on

ey
ac

cu
m

ul
at

es
in

a
fu

nd
se

t
as

id
e

to
pa

y
fo

r
pa

rk
in

g
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
.

In
20

07
,

a
ci

ti
ze

ns
pa

rk
in

g
ta

sk
fo

rc
e

re
co

m
m

en
de

d
in

cr
ea

si
ng

th
is

to
a

o
n
e

ti
m

e,
$7

,5
00

pa
ym

en
t.

T
he

ci
ty

co
un

ci
l

di
d

no
ta

do
pt

th
at

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n

in
o
r

de
r

to
gi

ve
bu

si
ne

ss
es

th
e

op
po

rt
un

ity
to

fo
rm

pa
rk

in
g

di
st

ri
ct

s,
w

hi
ch

es
se

nt
ia

ll
y

im
po

se
a

su
rc

ha
rg

e
on

bu
si

ne
ss

lic
en

se
s

to
pa

y
fo

r
pa

rk
in

g
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
.

B
ot

h
th

e
N

ye
B

ea
ch

an
d

C
ity

C
en

te
r

ar
ea

s
ha

ve
fo

rm
ed

pa
rk

in
g

di
st

ri
ct

s.
W

ith
th

e
ex

ce
pt

io
n

of
th

e
fi

sh
in

g
co

m
m

un
ity

,m
os

tb
us

in
es

se
s

on
th

e
B

ay
fr

on
t

su
pp

or
t

th
e

fo
rm

at
io

n
of

a
pa

rk
in

g
d
is

tr
ic

t.
If

m
or

e
th

an
33

pe
rc

en
to

fb
us

in
es

s

es
re

gi
st

er
op

po
si

ti
on

to
a

pa
rk

in
g

d
is

tr
ic

t,
th

e
pr

oc
es

s
st

op
s.

H
ow

ev
er

,
a
l

th
ou

gh
th

e
fi

sh
in

g
in

du
st

ry
us

es
th

e
B

ay
fr

on
t,

th
e

pa
rk

in
g

di
st

ri
ct

en
ds

at
th

e

m
o
v
in

g
al

on
g

w
it

h
no

hi
tc

h
at

al
l,

”
R

ic
k

L
it

tl
e,

O
D

O
T

’s
R

eg
io

n
2

pu
bl

ic
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
of

fi
ce

r
to

ld
th

e
N

ew
s-

T
im

es
re

ce
nt

ly
,n

ot
in

g
th

at
th

e
ef

fo
rt

is
on

tr
ac

k
to

fi
ni

sh
th

is
su

m
m

er
.

T
hi

s

pr
oj

ec
t

is
re

al
ig

ni
ng

th
e

cu
rv

es
ne

ar
S

am
’s

C
re

ek
R

oa
d

an
d

re
pa

vi
ng

th
e

ex
is

ti
ng

hi
gh

w
ay

be
tw

ee
n

S
am

’s
C

re
ek

R
oa

d
an

d
P

io
ne

er
M

ou
nt

ai
n

L
oo

p
R

oa
d.

T
o

ex
pe

di
te

th
e

ef
fo

rt
,

a
fu

ll
cl

os
ur

e
of

H
ig

hw
ay

20
is

sc
he

du
le

d
fr

om
6

p.
m

.
F

ri
da

y
un

ti
l

6
a.

m
.

M
on

da
y

at
m

il
ep

os
t

15
.

L
it

tl
e

sa
id

th
e

cl
os

ur
e

is
ne

ce
ss

ar
y

to
li

ft
th

e
ro

ad
w

ay
an

d
al

ig
n

it
w

it
h

a
ne

w
br

id
ge

,
an

d
to

fi
ni

sh
pa

vi
ng

30
0

at
e

a
ne

w
,

st
ra

ig
ht

er
se

ct
io

n
or

n
ig

n
w

ay
,

bo
os

ti
ng

sa
fe

ty
by

el
im

in
at

in
g

sh
ar

p
cu

rv
es

an
d

im
pr

ov
in

g
si

gh
t
d
is

ta
nc

e
fo

r
dr

iv
er

s.
“T

hi
s

is
si

m
il

ar
to

la
st

ye
ar

’s
c
lo

su
re

,b
ut

at
a

di
ff

er
en

t
lo

ca
ti

on
,”

L
it

tl
e

no
te

d.
S

am
’s

C
re

ek
R

oa
d

an
d

E
lk

C
it

y
R

oa
d

w
il

l
re

m
ai

n
op

en
to

lo
ca

l
tr

af
fi

c
fr

om
H

ig
hw

ay
20

.
O

re
go

n
H

ig
hw

ay
34

is
th

e
pr

im
ar

y
de

to
ur

fo
r

pa
ss

en
ge

r
an

d
re

cr
ea

ti
on

al
ve

hi
cl

es
.

T
ru

ck
s

ar
e

re
st

ri
ct

ed
to

le
ga

l
le

ng
th

li
m

it
at

io
ns

-

th
e

su
gg

es
te

d
tr

uc
k

ro
ut

e
is

O
re

go
n

99
W

to
O

re
go

n
22

to
O

re
go

n
18

.

C
on

tm
ue

do
n

P
ag

eA
8

ba
y,

so
m

e
ar

ea
s

to
to

e
e.

is
l

t
i
t
u

R
os

e
L

od
ge

)
se

at
on

th
e

L
in

co
ln

C
o
u
n

ty
S

ch
oo

l
D

is
tr

ic
t

B
oa

rd
of

D
ir

ec
to

rs
,

M
ar

ti
n

ta
ll

ie
d

6,
51

0
vo

te
s

(8
1

pe
rc

en
t)

to
B

id
dl

e’
s

1,
48

8
(1

9
pe

rc
en

t)
.

H
er

te
i

ti

ex
pi

re
s

Ju
ne

30
,2

01
5.

K
el

le
y

E
lli

s
w

as
un

op
po

se
d

in
he

r
bi

d
to

re
pl

ac
e

B
re

nd
a

B
ro

w
n

in
th

e
sc

ho
ol

di
st

ri
ct

’s
Z

on
e

4
(T

ol
ed

o,
S

il
et

z,
E

d
dy

vi
lle

ar
ea

s)
. S

he
w

ill
se

rv
e

ou
t

th
e

u
n

ex
pi

re
d

te
rm

,w
hi

ch
en

ds
Ju

ne
30

, 2
01

3.
E

ls
ew

he
re

,f
or

m
er

ci
ty

co
un

ci
l

m
em

be
r

R
og

er
Sp

ra
gu

e
re

tu
rn

ed
to

th
e

W
ar

d
II

I
se

at
on

L
in

co
ln

C
ity

C
ou

nc
il

,
ea

si
ly

be
st

in
g

po
li

ti
ca

l
ne

w
co

m
er

s
K

en
t

Se
id

a
an

d
D

on
W

il
li

am
s.

S
pr

ag
ue

,
w

ho
gl

ea
ne

d
20

5
vo

te
s

to
Se

id
a’

s
80

an
d

95
fo

r
W

il
li

am
s,

w
il

l
co

m
pl

et
e

a
te

rm
le

ft
un

fi
ni

sh
ed

du
e

to
th

e
de

at
h

of
lo

ng
-t

im
e

co
un

ci
l

m
em

be
r

E
d

K
un

tz
.T

he
te

rm
pi

re
s

D
ec

.
31

,2
01

2.
L

in
co

ln
C

ity
ha

d
th

re
e

ot
he

r
co

n
te

st
ed

ra
ce

s,
al

l
fo

r
se

at
s

on
th

e
D

ev
ils

L
ak

e
W

at
er

Im
pr

o\
em

en
t

D
is

tr
ic

t
B

oa
rd

of
D

ir
ec

to
rs

.
A

ft
er

a
fa

ir
am

ou
nt

of
p
re

el
ec

ti
on

ca
rp

in
g

am
on

g
th

e
ca

nd
id

at
es

,
N

oe
l

W
al

ke
r

ou
st

ed
Ja

ck
S

tr
ay

er
,

77
8-

52
9,

fo
r

po
si

ti
on

1,
R

an
dy

W
el

do
n

ea
se

d
pa

st
D

ou
gl

as
P

in
e,

73
0-

54
9,

fo
r

po
si

tio
n

2,
an

d
K

ip
W

ar
d

ro
lle

d
pa

st
Jo

e

B
ar

n
es

,
79

5-
53

5,
in

po
si

ti
on

3.
A

ll
ea

rn
ed

fo
ur

-y
ea

r
te

rm
s

th
at

ex
pi

re
Ju

ne

30
,2

01
5.

B
ot

h
op

en
co

m
m

is
si

on
er

po
si

ti
on

s
fo

r
th

e
P

or
t

of
T

ol
ed

o
w

er
e

co
nt

es
te

d.

M
ic

ha
el

L
.

K
ri

z
ea

si
ly

be
st

ed
M

ar
ga

re
t

I.
B

ru
ne

tt
e,

gl
ea

ni
ng

98
4

vo
te

s
to

B
ru

ne
tte

’s
40

3
t

w
in

po
si

ti
on

4.
Pe

nn
y

R
ye

rs
on

le
d

fo
rm

er
po

rt
co

m
m

is
si

on
er

C
od

y
G

ra
y

by
ju

st
45

vo
te

s,
7
1
8
-6

n
th

e
bi

d
fo

r
po

si
ti

on
5.

T
ho

se
te

rn
pi

re
Ju

ne
30

,2
01

5.
E

ls
ew

he
re

,
Y

al
e

F
og

ar
ty

be
st

ed
D

an

re
n

B
ri

cc
o,

22
8-

15
8,

fo
r

th
e

fo
ur

-y
ea

r,
po

si
tio

n
1

se
at

on
th

e
N

ew
po

rt
Fi

re
P

ro
te

ct
io

n
D

is
tr

ic
tB

oa
rd

of
D

ir
ec

to
rs

.
V

ot
er

tu
rn

ou
t

re
ac

he
d

ab
ou

t
42

p
e
r

ce
nt

,w
ith

10
,8

47
of

th
e

co
un

ty
’s

25
,9

87
vo

te
rs

re
tu

rn
in

g
ba

llo
ts

.

T
er

ry
D

it
tm

an
is

th
e

as
si

st
an

t
ed

it
or

of

th
e

N
ew

s-
T

im
es

.
C

on
ta

ct
hi

m
at

54
1-

26
5-

85
71

,
ex

t
22

5,
or

te
rr

yd
it

tr
na

n
@

ne
w

po
rt

ne
w

st
im

es
.c

om
.

M
ou

nt
ai

n
L

oo
p

to
fo

rc
e

de
to

ur
at

m
ile

po
st

15

B
y

T
er

ry
D

it
im

an

O
ft

h
e

N
ew

s-
T

im
es

9.
bf

t
7
4
1
am

:
-2

3f
t

7.
4f

t
7:

34
pm

12
5f

t

9A
ft

$:
27

am
/-2

3f
t

T
hf

t8
;2

3n
)2

.f
ft

8.
9f

t
9:

l4
am

/-1
.9

ft

7.
2f

t
9:

l5
pm

/2
.9

ft

ER S
t

h
Lo

w
R

ai
n

...
.0

.0
0

B
ay

fr
on

tp
ar

ki
ng

di
st

ri
ct

pu
ti

n
dr

y
do

ck

B
6-

8
C

4-
7

31
-3 C
4

C
2-

3
A

7
A

6
C

1-
3 35

(‘S
IN

SE
R

T
S

R
ite

A
id

•
Sa

fe
w

ay
•

T
V

G
ui

de

v
us

on
fa

ce
bo

ok
at

N
ew

s-
Ti

m
es

N
ew

sp
ap

er

34
6
3
9
7
8

4

A
pr

op
os

al
to

fo
rm

a
pa

rk
in

g
di

st
ri

ct
on

N
ew

po
rt

’s
B

ay
fr

on
th

as
be

en
pl

ac
ed

on
ho

ld
u
n

til
S

ep
te

m
be

r
as

a
re

su
lt

of
a

fl
ur

ry
of

p
ro

te
st

fr
om

m
em

be
rs

of
th

e
fi

sh
in

g
in

du
st

ry
.

(P
ho

to
by

St
ev

e
C

ar
d)

sh
or

el
in

e,
so

co
m

m
er

ci
al

fi
sh

in
g

bo
at

of
th

e
ci

ty
co

un
ci

l
M

on
da

y
ev

en
in

g.

ow
ne

rs
do

no
t

co
un

t
in

th
e

ta
lly

of
w

ho
L

os
in

g
ac

ce
ss

to
pa

rk
in

g
ne

ar
th

e

su
pp

or
ts

or
op

po
se

s
th

e
di

st
ri

ct
,

do
ck

s,
al

w
ay

s
at

a
pr

em
iu

m
du

ri
ng

th
e

M
or

e
th

an
45

fi
sh

er
m

en
re

gi
st

er
ed

su
m

m
er

m
on

th
s,

is
th

ei
rm

ai
n

co
nc

er
n.

th
ei

r
di

sp
ro

va
l

of
th

e
pr

op
os

ed
di

st
ri

ct

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__

w
ith

le
tte

rs
,a

nd
se

ve
ra

l
te

st
if

ie
d

in
fr

on
t

C
on

tin
ue

d
on

P
ag

eA
3

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 51 of 133



“A
pa

rk
in

g
di

st
ri

ct
is

a
bl

an
k

ch
ec

k
fo

r
th

e
to

ur
is

t
bu

si
ne

ss
to

do
w

ha
t

th
ey

w
an

t.”
fi

sh
er

m
an

M
ik

e
B

ec
ke

r
sa

id
.

T
he

an
nu

al
$1

00
bu

si
ne

ss
li

ce
ns

e
su

rc
ha

rg
e

w
ou

ld
ra

is
e

an
es

ti
m

at
ed

$1
0,

00
0

to
$1

5,
00

0
pe

r
ye

ar
.

A
co

m
m

it
te

e
of

b
u
si

ne
ss

ow
ne

rs
w

ou
ld

pl
an

pa
rk

in
g

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

,
w

hi
ch

co
ul

d
in

cl
ud

e
ne

w
si

gn
ag

e
or

le
as

in
g

ad
di

ti
on

al
sp

ac
es

,
bu

t
th

e
ci

ty
co

un
ci

l
w

ou
ld

ha
ve

fi
na

l
a
p

pr
ov

al
.

G
ab

e
M

cE
nt

ee
-W

il
so

n,
of

M
o’

s
R

es
ta

ur
an

t,
te

st
if

ie
d

th
at

th
e

B
ay

fr
on

t
M

er
ch

an
ts

A
ss

oc
i

at
io

n
ha

d
w

or
ke

d
fo

r
th

re
e

ye
ar

s
on

th
e

pa
rk

in
g

di
st

ri
ct

pl
an

an
d

ha
d

be
en

di
li

ge
nt

in
in

cl
ud

in
g

al
l

bu
si

ne
ss

es
.

A
t

th
e

su
gg

es
ti

on
of

C
o
u
n

ci
lo

r
D

av
id

A
ll

en
,

re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

es
fr

om
th

e.
B

ay
fr

on
t

to
ur

is
t

an
d

fi
sh

in
g

in
du

st
ri

es
ag

re
ed

to
fo

rm
an

ad
ho

c
co

m
m

it
te

e
to

w
or

k
on

m
ut

ua
ll

y
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

pa
rk

in
g

pr
oj

ec
ts

be
fo

re
th

e
pa

rk
in

g
di

st
ri

ct
is

fo
rm

ed
.

“W
e’

ll
ac

tu
al

ly
be

tr
yi

ng
to

do

th
e

to
ug

h
st

uf
ff

ir
st

,”
A

lle
n

sa
id

.
T

he
co

un
ci

l
vo

te
d

u
n
an

i
m

ou
sl

y
to

re
vi

si
t

th
e

is
su

e
at

its
Se

pt
.6

m
ee

tin
g.

a
,.
c

s
o
t

.,
..
‘
,.
,

K
id

s
Z

on
e.

T
he

no
np

ro
fi

t
gr

ou
p

al
so

pu
t

its
li

ab
il

it
y

in
su

ra
nc

e
in

or
de

r
an

d
se

cu
re

d
ap

pr
ov

al
fr

om
O

D
O

T
fo

r
a

tr
af

fi
c

pl
an

.
B

ut
co

m
m

is
si

on
er

s
st

il
l

ha
d

th
ei

r
do

ub
ts

,
w

hi
ch

m
ou

nt
ed

w
he

n
th

e
ow

ne
r

of
th

e
ga

s
st

a
tio

n
ba

ck
ed

ou
t

of
th

e
pa

rk
in

g
de

al
.

Fl
ee

H
on

g
st

ep
pe

d
fo

r
w

ar
d

to
sa

y
th

e
st

at
io

n
m

ig
ht

be
le

as
ed

or
so

ld
,

an
d

sh
e

di
dn

’t
w

an
t

an
y

en
cu

m
br

an
ce

s
on

th
e

pr
op

er
ty

.
Jo

hn
so

n
a
r

gu
ed

th
at

th
e

ot
he

r
to

t,
an

u
n

pa
ve

d
pa

rc
el

ow
ne

d
by

w
in

e-
m

ak
er

D
ic

k
C

ut
le

r,
w

as
ad

e
qu

at
e

fo
r

th
ei

r
ne

ed
s.

“S
o,

so
m

eb
od

y
tr

ip
s

ov
er

a
ro

ck
,

an
d

th
at

w
ill

be
a

p
ro

b
le

m
,”

co
un

te
re

d
a

co
m

m
is

si
on

er
.J

oh
ns

on
re

pl
ie

d
he

co
ul

dn
’t

im
ag

in
e

th
at

ha
pp

en
in

g,
bu

t
“i

f
th

ey
fe

ll
in

to
a

po
th

ol
e,

w
e

ar
e

lia
bl

e.
”

C
om

m
is

si
on

m
em

be
r

G
re

g

co
nc

ur
re

d,
sa

yi
ng

tr
ai

fi
c

co
ul

d
be

a
pr

ob
le

m
.

Sh
e

ci
te

d
th

e
re

ce
nt

E
as

te
r

D
ay

w
he

n
“t

ra
il

er
-

sa
il

or
s”

ja
m

m
ed

lo
ca

l
st

re
et

s
so

th
or

ou
gh

ly
“t

ha
t

th
e

E
as

te
r

bu
nn

y
co

ul
dn

’t
ge

tt
hr

ou
gh

.”
C

om
m

is
si

on
er

P
eg

gy
L

eo
ni

ag
re

ed
.

“I
t’

s
a

ni
ce

id
ea

bu
t

no
t

P!
GK

w3
r

N
E

SA
V

E
s

F
S

55
R

T
R

IM
M

E
R

W
AS

2
1
9

$
95

N
O

W
JU

S
T

D
U

e,
ic

ed
lh

,e
’*

7/
3/

11
a
lr

a
:r

P
7

de
cl

er
e

w
hi

le
w

pp
lie

s
la

st

V
er

sa
til

e,
st

ra
ig

ht
-

sh
al

t
tr

im
m

er
fo

r
oc

ca
si

on
al

or
lig

ht
-d

ut
y

pr
of

es
si

on
al

us
e

C
an

us
e

ny
lo

n
lin

e
or

ST
IH

L
Po

ly
C

ut
he

ad

Si
m

pl
e

lin
e

ad
va

nc
em

en
t

/
an

d
re

pl
ac

em
en

t

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

.
C

ou
nc

il
or

s
w

er
e

do
an

d
ho

w
ar

e
yo

u
do

in
g

it
.’

ne
ar

ly
un

an
im

ou
s

in
ag

re
ei

ng
th

at
V

oe
tb

er
g

ne
ed

s
to

im
pr

ov
e

C
on

ta
ct

re
po

rt
er

L
ar

ry
C

oo
n-

hi
s

re
la

tio
ns

hi
p

w
ith

th
e

co
un

ci
l,

ro
d

at
54

1-
26

5-
85

71
ex

t2
11

or

B
ee

m
er

sa
id

V
oe

tb
er

g
to

ld
la

rr
v@

ne
w

po
rt

ne
w

st
im

es
.c

om
.

B
A

Y
FR

O
N

T
A

l

fe
ar

of
co

m
pe

ti
ti

on
as

a
re

as
on

to
de

ny
th

e
pe

rm
it.

L
ou

ie
R

oe
,

17
,

ha
s

be
en

e
n

ro
ll

ed
in

th
e

K
id

s
Z

on
e

fo
r

10
ye

ar
s.

Sh
e

sa
id

th
e

co
m

m
un

it
y

ce
nt

er
id

ea
br

id
ge

d
a

cr
uc

ia
l

ga
p

in
th

e
K

id
s

Z
on

e
bu

si
ne

ss
pr

og
ra

m
,

w
hi

ch
of

fe
rs

co
ll

eg
e

KN
OW

LD
GE

TH
E

PO
VE

R

I

D
on

’t
M

is
s

Th
es

e

6G
55

H
A

N
D

H
EL

D
B

LO
W

ER

Pr
ov

en
ha

nd
he

ld
bl

ow
er

at
an

af
fo

rd
ab

le
pr

ic
e

H
E

A
R

IN
G

PR
O

T
E

C
T

O
R

S
S

ta
rt

in
g

A
t

W
H

EN
YO

U
PU

RC
HA

SE
A

6-
PA

CK
OF

ST
IH

L
HP

UL
TR

A
OI

L
J

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 52 of 133



Derrick Tokos

From: David Jincks [bluetox@q.com]
Sent: Wednesday, May 18, 2011 8:31 PM
To: Derrick Tokos

Derrick,
I attended the City Council meeting Monday evening to try and get a better understanding of the parking district topic
that has been flying around the Bay front for several weeks. I did gain considerable more knowledge on the current
issues by attending the Council meeting, though the main issue of parking is decades old. I had a sidebar with the Mayor
during the break and let him know the Port of Newport would be engaged in the current Bayfront parking crisis, Don
Mann and one Commissioner would be attending all meetings for the Port. I also had a brief conversation with
Councilman Bertuleit whom I had served on the 1998 Bayfront Advisory Committee with, this conversation left me
uneasy and concerned over possible Council Direction. I’m submitting my name as the representative for the Distant
Water Fleet that homeports out of Newport, to any Ad-Hoc Committee, Advisory Committee, or whichever Committee
format the Council deems as most advantageous. As President of Midwater Trawlers Cooperative (MTC) Oregon’s
largest distant water Fishing Vessel Owners Association with 46 members I feel it’s extremely important that we’re one
of the sectors represented. I still believe the mission statement in the Bay Front Plan that became part of the City’s
comprehensive plan is a worthy goal, and should remain the mission statement for our current efforts.

Please add me to any e-mail string that may be developed for advertising future meetings on Bay Front parking.

Thank You,

David ]incks
Midwater Trawlers Cooperative
P.O. Box 1434
Newport, OR 97365
bluefox@g.com
Fax: 541-574-6428
PH: 541-270-3208

1
Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 53 of 133



org said they obtained the
search warrant from the Lin
coln County Circuit Court.
Along with all the animals,
they seized store records.

Zaugg said the animals would
he examined, evaluated, and
placed in kisier care until the in
vestigation is complete. No

By Ross Coyle
Of the News-Times

The Newport City Council
autton iced its teittat ive ap
i)’ oval on Tuesday of a city
ord ittaitce proposal to create
an econoittic improvetnent
district along the Bayfront.

Cominuitity Development
Director Derrick Tokos em
phasized that tlte couticil’s
endorsement of the ordinance
was not official htit a general
reading and reviess of the pro
posed language.

We didn t 55 ant to ins est
the resources in pieparing tlte
IGA heftre we knew the
couitcil was behind the con
ce1tt,’ said Tokos,

The economic improvement
district is the result of plan
nine and coliinhittee ius,rk to
update a city ordinance from
the early hIts. The old ordi
itance requtres businesses de
veloping (In t he Bay front to
either provide parking with
des etopmeni or pay a $175
tee. o Inch contributes to—
,vards building parking
spices.

The ordtnattee svill define
property along Bay Boule
vard as an economic improve-
mciii district, which would
appln to all businesses in that
U st tic i . It il so establishes a
tax (in business licetise re
nec als for all businesses
ss ithin the district and ap
points an advisory board to
oversee the spending of those
funds on improvements.

The new ordinance comes
as an iniergovernmental
agreement between the Port of
Newport and City of Newport
with the port weighitig in to
represeni tishertnen and ma-
title industry interests and the
city representing citiCen and
Bayfront business interests.

To fund the districi im

prosements. a size-based sur
charge will he added to husi
tel., license renew ils in the
disirict . Businesses with few
er tItan five employees would
pay $150, tltose svitlt five to
2)) employees would pay
$3111), and those with more

West toast Bank & the Oregon Coast Aquarium

[ vile you to the 4th Annual Jellyfish Jubilee
A Celebration of Food & Wine to benefit the Oregon Coast Aquarium

Tickets: S90 Members, 5100 Nonmembers
Saturday, September 17, 2011 at 6p.m.

Champagne Reception with Horn d’oeuvres
Regional Cuisine nnd Regional Wines ptoe’ided by: Bay 839, Restaurant Back, Starfish Gtill, th’Bougia, Rogue Ales, Chinnak

Windu,lnonl Ocean Sealunds, Shim Itt Newpant, South Bench Gaul, Suvury Cal) A Pizzeria, Gentgies Baathtlde 6611,
Lu Muitun, Sokal Blnsr, OUn Knul, E,eVaIe Winery, Pdu Bnepad A Winery, Baralunt Wine A Bubbly, eat Waeynrd A Caters

Densests A (allen ptnvidacl by Isutacmm (hacotates, kjormnn’s bales A tahitug Cu, lulue Swesls, FAn (alma
Erulantuinmeet pmsbled hp Nudlnwest Patblon

pcvp ..,l,e.-Ls..C,.,’k.eots..,,s,-;....,.-o

LOOSE DENTURES?
Now you can
have what you crave!

Visit Dr.Herkert in the morning, have the
“Mini-Implant System” placed in less than two hours,

then go out and enjoy your favorite lunch.
What are MDI Implants?
The MDI Systeiti consists at a noncitire Iiiarven vvtilant
that acts like the runt ot patti tooth and ilo rvi,,inlit hates:
that is incorporated ills its: base at sour doidvo The lisa]
oh the implant is xhaped hke a b,i’, si’,,) il:. .-haong huti’s: 7
acts like a socket that cuetains a cAbs, O-v’i’i Tie C-i in
snaps oven the ball shen toe Anita i”’s’.s,ito’J eel halds
the denture at a predeterniioed level at orce Oi:- i scaN,)
the denture gently rests on the ,on tissue The vvpt,inh
interns alleoi mr nncrnniobihity ‘whole ivitlint,i,oling ostoil

liftiiiig forces

Gregory E. Herkert, ODS, FAGD
680 W Hwy 20 Toledo, OR 97391

lion ‘LI, ion of the ani
mals ssi rinine what, if
any, cltargc .-,,, filed.

Because tttey are es’tdence in
this case, the animals are not yet
as ailabte ‘or adoption.

Cindy Hanson. public rela
ions manager for the aquanum.

said tltey would take care of the

extremelyaccommodatingon
very short notice in helping
rhetn remove and transport the
fish. Barbara Buugnon, the hu
mane society’s marketing com
munications director, said the
Oregon Department of Agricul
ture also provided “a piece in
the puzzle” by forwarding com

r”’c I .Zaugg said rges are
filed, they wo mit the
case to Linci,ln L ..y Districi %
Attorney Rob Boveit.

Mon - Fri 10-5:30 & Sat 10-4:30 I] ‘

541-563-6761
‘a mile East of Waldport an Hvsy 34 (RV Loop)

Contact ansislattt editer li’rrv
Dillitiau at 531-265-8571. ext
225. or rern’diI1i,tao nruuport
neuron itfles coot.

Newport tentatively approves economic
improvement district along Bayfront

Seniors 62 & Older...

Use \ucIr Fu1uiIy For
— ‘ens Psus’posv

ihait 2)) employees would pay
56(6], The tee ssould be enact
ed hegintuing in October
2012,

TIte surcharge will he re
duced mr SlOP fu,r any busi
ness ihat provides its own
parking md will he waived
tot small husioesses that op
erate one or two days per
sseek or less than one month
per year.

Outside of the bustttess sur
charge. Tokos expects im
pros’enruents will he funded
through the former it-lieu-of
parking account. ‘That has a
substantial amount of money
in it,” he said, estimatittg it to

be around $250,000. He also
expects the license surcharge
to provide around $19,000 per
year - $6,000 from the port
and $ 13,1100 from the city,

The ordinance also creates
a District Advisory Commit
tee to oversee and recom
mend improxemesil projects
for the district. The commit
tee spill he composed of an
even number of representa
tives. with at least one mem
ber from Bayfront businesses,
fishermen, and the Port of
Newport. All positions will be
filled by city council approval
after the adoption of the ordi
nance.

Ne ‘elnuthip Mortgnge

PttinsentsNo Incunie Or Credit
Qualifirations

City council will postpone
a roll call vote until the IGA
between Newport and the
Port of Newport is agreed up
on. The IGA and ordinance
will be voted on in the same
session, which Tokos expects
to happen within the next tss-o
months.” I’m taking the IGA
to the port commission later
in September,” he said, “so I
expect to put both before city
council in October.

Ross Coyle is it repisrterJiir

the Neuu’s-Tinies. He can be
reached at 531-265-8571 ext.
221 or rosscovle@oeue’purnuuesr
stimes.co,n.

erse Home

27VA I I I

WIN AN AMAZING
ONE-OF-A-KIND SURFBOARD

THAT DEPICTS THE SIGHTS AND SPECIES OF THE OREGON
COAST BY NEWPORT ARTiST. RON HOUCHEN5.

Proceeds benefit the Aquarium’s Oceanscape Network, a
deveioping resource that connects kids to the coast

ON DISPLAY AT THE AQUARIUMI
I

Tickets available at the Aquarium or www.aquoriam.org
Ttckets $10 each or five for $40

0rawrig held September 30, 2011-Need riot toe present to maui

OREGON COAST 2it20 Sb Ferry slip Road IriTt
AQUARIUM ‘1.1 I -ile,7- t474
N E W P0 B T svwsv aqi iar,em org

Come Enjoy jUt

“Baby Grand” PIano

Ad Sponsored by:

Lcrss n

TUE ,,,rs 9pm
New Dart Board

FREE POOL — FREE WtFI

BAR1ISTRO
SOUPS — SALADS - SANDWICHES

$3 Nachos — $4 Nauti Burger — Beer — Wine — Cocktails
Open Daily 11am — Happy Hour 4 - 7pm

Call for your rnmnlimpntmr., ,-rsrser,,Hmtinn

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 54 of 133



Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 55 of 133



Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 56 of 133



Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 57 of 133



Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 58 of 133



Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 59 of 133



Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 60 of 133



O L D  B U S I N E S S  A G E N D A  I T E M  
 

 
    

DATE:   8/23/2016 

RE:  International Terminal Shipping Facility Update 

TO:  Port of Newport Board of Commissioners 

ISSUED BY:  Kevin Greenwood, General Manager 
    

 
FINANCING UPDATE 
 
Connect Oregon:   

• Process is complete. 
 

Economic Development Administration:   
• Continue to work with consultants and EDA staff to refine the application. 
• EDA Administrators are in contact with TIGER representatives to find out project overlap and 

coordination. 
• Federal funds cannot be used to leverage one another, so both agencies are looking at where a 

good “seam” would be. 
 
TIGER US Dept. of Transportation:   

• Bob Bouchard and Bob Loken from USDOT were in Newport today. I gave them a presentation 
on the project, tour of the site and we discussed the financing plan including the IFA Loan and 
NOAA cash reserves. I stressed that our plan was not to use those funds but to find better 
financing including EDA by early Spring 2017. 

 
State Options:   

• I continue to work with Rep. Gomberg, Sen. Roblan and others in the Coastal Caucus to find 
other funding opportunities for the project. 

• Looking at funds in the Regional Solutions (RST) program where $800k is marked “pending”. 
Small amount in Community Develop Block Grants (CDBG), $46k. Governor’s Special Reserve 
Fund (SRF) could be used as a last resort, but not specific on amounts. 

 
Private Options:   

• Talked with Craft3 a non-profit lender about their loan programs. 
• Continuing to talk to private sector about investing. 

 
OTHER 
 

• Corps permit has officially been received. This permit basically removed Teevin’s name and 
replaced it with the Port. 

• Continuing to work with the Economic Development Alliance of Lincoln County to receive a 
state-wide marketing designation for the property. The certification is called a Regionally 
Significant Industrial Area (RSIA) and would apply to the Hall property as well. 

 
-###- 

 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 61 of 133



Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 62 of 133



N E W  B U S I N E S S  A G E N D A  I T E M  
 

    

DATE:   8/18/2016 

RE:  Resolution adopting a safety policy 

TO:  Kevin Greenwood / Port of Newport Board of Commissioners 

ISSUED BY:  Rick Fuller – Director of Operations 
    

 
 
BACKGROUND  
 
Per the attached SDAO Memorandum dated 8/5/2010:  
As a member of Special Districts Insurance Services Workers’ Compensation Program (group self-insured), OR-
OSHA requires certain administrative responsibilities under OAR 437-001-1055 and OAR 437-001-1060 for your 
district.   
 
OAR 437-001-1055 requires each member of a group self-insured program to establish and implement a written 
occupational health and safety loss prevention program for each establishment that includes; 1) loss prevention 
effort for prevention or reduction of health and safety injuries and illnesses; and 2) inform managers and 
workplace locations of the availability and the process for requesting loss prevention assistance.  OAR 437-001-
1060 then outlines what is required as part of the loss prevention effort. 
 
Currently the Port of Newport does not have a comprehensive safety policy that has been adopted by 
management or the commission. 
 
PURPOSE, SCOPE AND DETAIL 
 
In order to conform to the standards of OR-OSHA, OAR 437-001-1055, OAR 437-001-1060, SDAO, and Sec. 3.6 
and 5.7 of the adopted Personnel Manual, the Port of Newport Safety Committee and staff have completed the 
attached comprehensive Safety and Health Policy.  The scope of the Safety and Health Policy brings together 
written statements, programs, policies and plans in an organized manner which confirms the Ports commitment to 
the safety and health of its employees.  As a tool of expediency, the policy is supported by standalone & 
individually detailed programs, policies and plans (Example attached) which can be altered, edited and revised as 
standards, policies and conditions warrant without the necessity of Commission adoption. 
 
ALTERNATE CONSIDERATIONS 
 
The OR-OSHA requirement does not specify or outline a single Safety & Health Plan but does require specific 
individual written documents and programs.  The individual requirements can be maintained as individual items 
under the program.  This approach is not recommended as it could result in conflicting, absent or misrepresented 
policies and programs for the administration as is evident in the Self –Insured Annual Evaluation of 6/24/2015.   
 
BUDGET IMPLICATIONS 
 
The 2016/2017 budget for safety and equipment is adequate to maintain the programs described in this policy.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
I would recommend that the Commission make a MOTION TO ADOPT THE SAFETY & HEALTH POLICY AS 
PRESENTED  

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 63 of 133



Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 64 of 133



PORT OF NEWPORT 
RESOLUTION NO. 2016-xx 

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING A HEALTH AND SAFETY POLICY FOR PORT OF 
NEWPORT EMPLOYEES. 

WHEREAS, the Port of Newport By-laws for the Port of Newport requires the 
Commission to create personnel rules by resolution (Sec. 6(D)) and to provide a safe work 
environment (Sec. 6(G)); and 

WHEREAS, Personnel Manual was adopted by the Port Commission on March 28, 2000 
and has amended the personnel policies periodically; and 

WHEREAS, the Personnel Manual requires (Sec. 3.6 and 5.7) that the Port have and use 
a Health and Safety Policy for the protection of its employees; NOW THEREFORE 

THE PORT OF NEWPORT BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS RESOLVES AS 
FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Adopt the Health and Safety Policy (Exhibit A). 

Section 2. Individual Safety Programs will be developed administratively by the 
Port’s management team following best management practices developed and/or recommended 
by the Oregon Safety and Health Administration (OSHA), Bureau of Labor and Industries 
(BOLI), Special Districts Association of Oregon (SDAO), and other professional associations. 

Section 3. Staff is directed to codify this policy according to past administrative 
practices. 

Section 4. Prior versions of the Health and Safety Plan are hereby repealed.. 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS this 23rd 
day of August, 2016. 

ATTEST: 

__________________________________ __________________________________ 
Walter Chuck, President Patricia Patrick-Joling, Secretary/Treasurer 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 65 of 133



Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 66 of 133



Safety and Health 
Policy 

Adopted by Resolution No. 2016-xx August 23, 2016 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 67 of 133



Table of Contents 

INTRODUCTION............................................................................................................. 2 

1. Safety and Health Policy Statement ........................................................................ 3

2. Safety and Health Loss Prevention Program ......................................................... 4

3. Safety Committee Policy Statement ........................................................................ 5

3.1. Purpose ................................................................................................................. 5 
3.2. Organization ......................................................................................................... 5 
3.3. Extent of Authority .............................................................................................. 5 
3.4. Functions .............................................................................................................. 5 
3.5. Recommendations ................................................................................................ 5 
3.6. Procedures ............................................................................................................ 5 

4. Programs, Policies & Plans ...................................................................................... 7

4.1. Purpose ................................................................................................................. 7 
4.2. Safety And Health Training ................................................................................. 7 
4.3. System For Conducting An Accident Investigation ............................................ 7 

4.4. Hazard Communication Program ........................................................................ 8 
4.5. Personal Protective Equipment Program ............................................................. 8 
4.6. Marine Safety Program ........................................................................................ 8 
4.7. Lockout / Tagout Program ................................................................................... 9 
4.8. Vehicle Safety Program ....................................................................................... 9 
4.9 Confined Spaces Program .................................................................................. 10 
4.10 Fall Protection Program ..................................................................................... 10 
4.11 Emergency Response Plan for Employees ........................................................ 10 
4.12 Other .................................................................................................................. 10 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 68 of 133



INTRODUCTION 

The Port of Newport is committed to providing and maintaining a safe and healthy work place 

for its employees.  We believe that accidents can be prevented and that every employee is 

entitled to work under the safest possible conditions. 

The Port of Newport will make every reasonable effort to promote loss prevention activities and 

will provide 1) safe working equipment, 2) necessary personal protection and, 3) in the event of 

an injury, emergency first aid and/or medical services. 

It is the responsibility of every employee, the General Manager, and the Board of Commissioners 

to provide for a safe and healthy work area, safe equipment, and safe work practices.  We need 

the full cooperation and effort of everyone to integrate loss prevention activities into both normal 

and non-routine business operations. 

_________________________________ ___________________ 

President, Board of Commissioners  Date 

_________________________________ ___________________ 

General Manager, Port of Newport   Date 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 69 of 133



1. Safety and Health Policy Statement

It is the intent of The Port of Newport to provide a safe environment for employees and volunteers. It is also our 

intent to properly manage any incidents that occur so as to minimize injury and other forms of loss. A well-

managed workplace safety program can benefit our organization and its people in countless ways. In order for 

the Port of Newport to achieve our goals, we have developed a workplace safety program outlining the policies 

and procedures regarding employee and volunteer health and safety. Each and every individual must become 

familiar with the program, follow and enforce the procedures, and become an active participant in this 

workplace safety program. 

While management (the workplace safety officer and/or workplace safety committee) will be 

responsible for developing and organizing this program, its success will depend on the involvement of 

each employee and volunteer.  We look forward to your cooperation and participation. 

1.1.  Accountability 

1.1.1. Formal standards of behavior and performance. The Port of Newport has written safety 

plans, policies, programs, processes, and procedures that are formulated by management and 

clearly communicated to each employee.  

1.1.2. Resources and support to meet defined standards.  Management will provide the 

physical resources (tools, equipment, materials, workstations, facilities) and other support 

(education, training, scheduling, and culture) to achieve defined standards.  

1.1.3. Behavior and performance.  Informal processes occur daily as a result of effective 

supervision that may be defined as "detecting and correcting hazardous conditions and 

unsafe behaviors before they result in an injury".  All Employees are held accountable for 

only those responsibilities over which they have control. What an employee actually 

controls in the workplace depends on the position they hold. With greater assigned 

responsibility comes greater fixed accountability. Accountability follows control.  

1.1.4. Consequences. When employees perform unsafe behaviors, actions will be initiated per the 

personnel policy. Employees will be disciplined if they choose unsafe behaviors.  

1.1.5. Applying discipline appropriately. Repeated safety infractions by an employee is 

considered serious. Discipline will be considered per the procedures found in the personnel 

policy.   

1.1.6. Evaluation of the accountability system. All systems and subsystems require a continual 

examination of internal processes to make sure the system is functioning properly. Safety 

staff should conduct ongoing analysis and evaluation of all processes within the safety 

accountability system.  

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 70 of 133



2. Safety and Health Loss Prevention Program
The safety and health of all workers/employees is a shared goal of all who work for the Port of 

Newport. The Port’s policy is that all managers, supervisors, and other employees share responsibility 

for taking reasonable steps to engender a safe and healthful workplace. 

The Port of Newport has an established safety committee consisting of management and labor 

representatives that holds regularly scheduled safety meetings. The goal of the committee is to assist in 

identifying hazards and unsafe work practices, mitigating obstacles to accident prevention, and 

evaluating the Port’s safety program. 

The Port of Newport expects all management and hourly employees to participate in the following 

actions: 

2.1. Strive to achieve zero accidents and injuries. 

2.2. Take reasonable steps to improve safety and health rules. 

2.3. Assist in loss control efforts aimed at identifying and mitigating industrial hygiene and/or safety 

hazards. 

2.4. Identify reasonable and appropriate mechanical and physical safeguards. 

2.5. Conduct reasonable safety and health inspections. 

2.6. Train workers as needed in safe work practices and procedures. 

2.7. Provide employees with personal protective equipment as appropriate to specific job tasks, and 

training employees in its appropriate care and use. 

2.8. Use appropriate personal protective equipment. 

2.9. Report hazards, unsafe work practices, and accidents. 

2.10. Assist in the identification of the cause of on the job injuries, and in the identification of 

reasonable methods to prevent similar occurrences. 

2.11. Supervise workers in safe work practices. 

2.12. Enforce applicable safe work rules. 

2.13. Participate in and support safety committee activities. 

2.14. Review the Port’s Safety and Health Program annually or as needed. 

Discipline per the personnel policy process could result from a failure to pay reasonable attention to 

any of the above. 

IF LOSS PREVENTION ASSISTANCE IS NEEDED AT ANY TIME, CONTACT: 

Port of Newport Human Resources:  541.265.7758 

Port of Newport Director of Operations:  

541.265.7758 

Special Districts Association of Oregon (SDAO) Loss Control Dept.: 

800.285.5461 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 71 of 133



3. Safety Committee Policy Statement

3.1.   Purpose 

The purpose of our centralized safety committee is to bring workers and management together in a 

non-adversarial, cooperative effort to promote safety and health in the workplace.  The safety 

committee will assist management and make recommendations for change. 

3.2.  Organization 

There shall be, in most cases, an equal number of employee and employer representatives from each 

organizational departments.  However, there may be more employee representatives than employer 

representatives if both groups agree.  Employee representatives shall be volunteers or elected by their 

peers.  If no employees volunteer or are elected, they will be appointed by management.  Employer 

representatives will be appointed.  Safety committee members will serve a continuous term of at least 

one year.  The committee will elect a chairperson and a secretary every three years. Committee 

membership terms will be staggered so that at least one experienced member is always on the 

committee. 

3.3.   Extent of Authority 

It must be clearly understood that the safety committee advises management on issues that will 

promote safety and health in the workplace.  Written recommendations are expected from the safety 

committee and they will be submitted to management.  In turn, management will give serious 

consideration to the recommendations submitted and will respond in writing to the committee within a 

reasonable time. A policy amendment may be drafted for Port Commission adoption. 

3.4.  Functions 

3.4.1. Committee meetings and employee involvement 

3.4.2. Hazard assessment and control 

3.4.3. Safety and health planning 

3.4.4. Evaluation of accountability system 

3.4.5. Evaluation of management commitment to workplace safety and health 

3.4.6. Accident and incident investigation  

3.4.7. Safety and health training 

3.4.8. Evaluation of Safety & Health Policy 

3.5.  Recommendations 

All recommendations submitted to management must be written and should: 

3.5.1. Be clear and concise 

3.5.2. Provide reasons for implementation 

3.5.3. Give recommended options 

3.5.4. Show implementation costs and recommended completion dates 

3.5.5. List benefits to be gained 

3.6. Procedures 

The committee’s plan of action requires procedures by which the committee may successfully fulfill its 

role.  Procedures developed should include but not be limited to: 

3.6.1. Meeting date, time and location (Safety Committee Meeting Agenda) 

3.6.2. Election of chairperson and secretary 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 72 of 133



3.6.3. Order of business 

3.6.4. Records (Safety Committee Meeting Minutes) 

3.6.5. Duties of each member includes, but is not limited to: 

3.6.6. Reporting unsafe conditions and practices 

3.6.7. Attending all safety and health meetings 

3.6.8. Reviewing all accidents and near-misses 

3.6.9. Recommending ideas for improving safety and health 

3.6.10. Working in a safe and healthful manner 

3.6.11. Observing how safety and health is enforced in the workplace 

3.6.12. Completing assignments given to them by the chairperson 

3.6.13. Acting as a work area representative in matters pertaining to health and safety 

3.6.14. Others as determined by company safety and health needs 

You can find a list of the current list of Safety Committee members posted within your employee 

communication area. 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 73 of 133



4. PROGRAMS, POLICIES & PLANS

4.1. Purpose 

The Port of Newport follows all applicable Oregon OSHA standards. The Port of Newport complies 

with the General Duty Clause of the OSH Act, which requires employers to keep their workplace free 

of serious recognized hazards. The following programs, policies and plans are modeled after Oregon 

OSHA standards and are summarized below for quick reference.  The content of the programs, policies 

and plans are reviewed regularly and are subject to change as laws and standards are amended. The 

Port of Newport programs are on file and can be referenced by all personnel as needed.    The safety 

programs, policies and plans of the Port of Newport are not limited to the following list and may be 

amended as required. Contact your immediate supervisor for a list of the current safety programs, 

policies and plans available. 

4.2.  Safety And Health Training 

Management and employees will be trained in any of the defined training programs listed as their 

position requires, however, all employees are encouraged to participate in any of the programs if they 

have a desire to do so.  Following are examples of available training. 

4.2.1. Forklift Training 

4.2.2. Hazard Communication Training 

4.2.3. Lockout/Tag-out Training 

4.2.4. First Aid & CPR Training (Including Blood-born pathogens) 

4.2.5. Back Safety 

4.2.6. Ergonomics 

4.2.7. Personal Protective Equipment 

4.2.8. Electrical Safety Training 

4.2.9. Hoist and Crane Training 

4.2.10. Employer and Employee Safety Responsibilities 

4.2.11. Accident Investigation 

4.2.12. Machine Guarding 

4.2.13. Confined Space Training 

4.2.14. Boaters Line Handling 

4.3.  System For Conducting An Accident Investigation 

4.3.1. Investigation team - Includes employees who have been trained to conduct an effective 

investigation. A team must include a minimum of: 

4.3.1.1. One employee from the work area where the accident occurred (not involved in 

the  accident). 

4.3.1.2. A supervisor from a work area not involved in the accident. 

4.3.1.3. A safety committee representative if not included in the team above. 

4.3.2. Gather information - Record the facts about the accident. Interview witnesses and others 

involved.  

4.3.3. Analyze the facts - Identify the accident’s causes and contributing factors.   Determine how 

the accident could have been prevented. 

4.3.4. Report the findings - Prepare a written report that describes who was involved, where the 

accident occurred, when it happened, and what caused it. Recommend, specifically, how to 

prevent the accident from happening again. 

4.3.5. Act on the recommendations - Have management and the safety committee review the 

report and determine what will be done to prevent similar accidents from occurring in the 

future. 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 74 of 133



4.3.6. Follow up - Ensure that appropriate corrective action was taken to prevent the accident. 

4.3.7. Distribution and filing – Distribute the findings and actions as needed and ensure all 

documentation has been filed per the Port policies. 

4.4.  Hazard Communication Program 

4.4.1. Purpose 

The purpose of the Hazard Communication Program (HazCom) is “to ensure that the hazards of 

all chemicals produced or imported are evaluated and details regarding their hazards are 

transmitted to employers and employees." 

4.4.2. Scope 

The Hazardous Communication Program consists of: 

4.4.2.1. Container Labeling 

4.4.2.2. Safety Data Sheets (SDS) 

4.4.2.3. Hazardous Communication Training 

4.4.2.4. Hazardous Chemicals List 

4.4.2.5. Non-Routine Hazardous Material Tasks 

4.4.2.6. Contractor Requirements 

Refer to the current and updated Port of Newport Hazard Communication Program on file for further 

details. 

4.5. Personal Protective Equipment Program 

4.5.1. Purpose 

The purpose of this program is to establish a minimum standard for the use of personal protective 

equipment (PPE).  The use of personal protective equipment is vital in preventing injury to 

employees.  This program points out Port requirements, and employee compliance as a condition 

of employment.  Failure to comply with the PPE Policy is considered just cause for disciplinary 

action. 

4.5.2. Scope 

The Port will provide or reimburse the employee for all required PPE as determined in the 

personnel policy for items such as life vest, steel-toed shoes, work gloves, and high visibility 

clothing. The Port of Newport will provide training for employees in the care and use of PPE and 

inspect worksites for compliance of this policy. Supervisors are responsible for setting the proper 

example and for enforcing this policy. Employees are responsible for maintaining and wearing 

PPE as required in this policy. 

Refer to the current and updated Port of Newport Personal Protective Equipment Program on file 

for further details. 

4.6.  Marine Safety Program 

4.6.1. Purpose 

The purpose of the Marine Safety is to establish minimum standards of safety while working in 

our unique marine environment.   

4.6.2. Marine life 

The Yaquina Bay is a diversified marine environment.  Large mammals such as seals and sea lions 

use the shoreline habitat along with docks and will be encountered.  Marine mammals are wild 

animals and can be dangerous. Caution and distance should be maintained to avoid attack. 

4.6.3. Water craft & work barges 

Port owned watercraft will be operated by authorized personnel only.  All boat operators must 

have a valid boater’s education certificate and provide proof of practical skills of safe operations. 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 75 of 133



Unless transiting Port owned vessels, there will be a minimum of two persons in the vessel for all 

work activities. PFD’s will be worn at all times when on a port owned watercraft. 

Refer to the current and updated Port of Newport Marine Safety Program on file for further details. 

4.7. Lockout / Tagout Program 

4.7.1. Purpose 
The purpose of this established lockout/tagout program is to provide maximum safety protection 

from hazardous energies to our employees whenever they must service or perform maintenance on 

machinery and equipment. 

4.7.2. Scope 
These procedures shall be used by all employees authorized to service or maintain our equipment 

to ensure that machines or equipment are completely isolated from all potential hazardous energy 

sources.  All employees affected in any way by servicing and maintenance activities shall also be 

knowledgeable of lockout/tagout procedures consisting of: 

4.7.2.1. Application 

4.7.2.2. Compliance 

4.7.2.3. Authorization 

4.7.2.4. Procedures 

4.7.2.5. Training 

Refer to the current and updated Port of Newport Lockout / Tagout Program on file for further details. 

4.8.  Vehicle Safety Program 

4.8.1. Purpose  
This program has been developed to define standards of conduct and establish mandatory training 

for staff, and volunteers who operate motor vehicles or equipment while conducting The Port of 

Newport business. The primary goal of this policy is to help prevent accidents and minimize the 

risk of personal injury associated with those incidents.  

4.8.2. Scope 

This program applies to individuals who are required to operate a motor vehicle, Port-owned or 

personally owned, to conduct Port business.  

4.8.3. Definitions  

For the purpose of this program, "motor vehicle operator" refers to any staff, or volunteer, 18 

years of age or older, who operates a motor vehicle while conducting Port business. "Frequently" 

shall be defined as once a week or more. Individuals who are under 18 year of age may not operate 

a motor vehicle to conduct Port business.  

Refer to the current and updated Port of Newport Vehicle Safety Program on file for further details. 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 76 of 133



4.9   Confined Spaces Program 

4.9.1 Purpose  

The purpose of this program is to ensure the safety of Port employees that may enter into areas and 

confined spaces that are designated per OR-OSHA 437-002-0146. The primary goal of this 

program is to prevent accidents and minimize the risk of personal injury associated with confined 

spaces.  

4.9.2 Scope 

This program applies to individuals who are trained and required to enter into confined spaces.  

 

Refer to the current and updated Port of Newport Confined Spaces Program on file for further details.  

4.10 Fall Protection Program 

4.10.1 Purpose  

The purpose of this program is to ensure that every employee who works for the Port of Newport 

recognizes workplace fall hazards and takes the appropriate measures to address those hazards. 

4.10.2.   Scope 

OSHA requires that fall protection be provided at elevations of four feet in general industry 

workplaces, five feet in shipyards, six feet in the construction industry and eight feet in 

longshoring operations. This program describes requirements for fall protection in the varying 

jobsite situations found at the Port of Newport. 

 

Refer to the current and updated Port of Newport Fall Protection Program on file for further details. 

4.11  Emergency Response Plan for Employees 

4.11.1 Purpose 

In the event of a sudden emergency situation that includes, but is not limited to, fire, explosion, 

earthquake, tsunami, weather, terrorist act, sabotage, work place violence, or vessel collision, Port 

supervisory personnel shall immediately alert all employees of the emergency situation, by verbal 

communication, and lend assistance to ensure a safe and orderly evacuation if required. 

4.11.2 Scope 

 

Refer to the current and adopted Port of Newport Emergency Response Plan on file for further details. 

 

4.12 Other 
 

Additional programs may be added to this list as amended per the policies of the Port of Newport. 

 

I have read and understand the provisions of the Port of Newport Safety & Health Policy.  I have 

been instructed how to obtain the current programs, policies and plans of this policy. 

 

 

Name (printed)  Signature  Date 

 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 77 of 133



Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 78 of 133



*** IMPORTANT *** 
To: SDIS Workers’ Compensation Insurance Program Members 

From: Scott Neufeld, Loss Control Manager 

Date: August 5, 2010 

Re: OR-OSHA Self-Insured Loss Prevention Program  

As a member of Special Districts Insurance Services Workers’ Compensation 
Program (group self-insured), OR-OSHA requires certain administrative 
responsibilities under OAR 437-001-1055 and OAR 437-001-1060 for your 
district.   
 
OAR 437-001-1055 requires each member of a group self-insured program to 
establish and implement a written occupational health and safety loss prevention 
program for each establishment that includes; 1) loss prevention effort for 
prevention or reduction of health and safety injuries and illnesses; and 2) inform 
managers and workplace locations of the availability and the process for 
requesting loss prevention assistance. 
 
OAR 437-001-1060 then outlines what is required as part of the loss prevention 
effort.    
 
SDAO and legal counsel have put together a program that will help members 
meet the OR-OSHA requirement for a loss prevention effort at your district.  This 
loss prevention effort is above and beyond your already required written 
programs such as hazard communication and lockout/tagout as an example. 
 
The first step in the process is to make sure that all managers at your district 
know that SDAO is your workers’ compensation carrier and that as a member of 
the program loss prevention assistance is available to them.  This can be as 
simple as sending an email out to all managers or posting a notice at all 
establishments stating this (attached is a notice you can copy and post).  Have a 
plan in place that if loss prevention assistance is needed, mangers know who to 
contact at your district so it can be forwarded to the SDAO loss control 
department.   
 
Failure to comply with these OR-OSHA requirements can result in fines for 
your district.   Our Loss Control Department is available to help you meet this 
requirement.  Please take advantage of our assistance by calling us at (800) 285-
5461. 
 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 79 of 133



The second step is to have in writing a loss prevention effort that encompasses 
the district’s operations.  Attached is a generic District Safety and Health 
Program that is intended to help meet the OAR 437-001-1060 requirements.  The 
district needs to review the document and add any specific/unique safety issues 
at your establishments.  A copy of this document needs to be located at each 
establishment, with added specific hazards if any, of the district.  A district can 
use the same loss prevention effort at multiple establishments if the operations 
are similar at the locations. 
 
This loss prevention effort needs to be review on an annual basis and changes 
made if necessary when operations or processes have changed over the year.  
Each year a copy of the loss prevention effort needs to be forwarded to SDAO to 
be added to your loss control file.  SDAO loss control staff will be reviewing your 
loss prevention efforts during their visits throughout the year. 
 
If you have any questions please contact SDAO loss control at 1-800-285-5461 
or losscontrol@sdao.com. 
 
 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 80 of 133

mailto:losscontrol@sdao.com


This district is self insured for workers’ 
compensation insurance through Special 
Districts Association of Oregon (SDAO). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Pursuant to OAR 437-001-1050, 437-001-1055 and  
437-001-1060, SDAO provides assistance and loss 

prevention services should district personnel and volunteers 
have concerns regarding health and safety hazards.  

 

 
 
 

 
 
Should you have safety or health concerns, please contact your 
district risk manager, business manager or supervisor.  Supervisors 
and managers should be advised that assistance regarding safety 
and health hazards can be obtained through the Loss Control 
Department of SDAO by calling (800) 285-5461 or emailing 
losscontrol@sdao.com   

 
SDAO hopes to provide assistance with the intent of helping 
Oregon’s Special Districts provide a safe and healthy workplace. This 
information should be posted at each establishment. 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 81 of 133

mailto:sdao@sdao.com


Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 82 of 133



 

Lockout-Tagout program Rev 8-2016 - Example 
 

Lockout / Tagout Program 

 

1. Purpose 
The purpose of this established lockout/tagout program is to provide maximum safety protection from 

hazardous energies to our employees whenever they must service or perform maintenance on machinery 

and equipment. 

 

2. Scope 
These procedures shall be used by all employees authorized to service or maintain our equipment to ensure 

that machines or equipment are completely isolated from all potential hazardous energy sources.  All 

employees affected in any way by servicing and maintenance activities shall also be knowledgeable of 

lockout/tagout procedures. 

 

3. Application 
These procedures shall be followed whenever unexpected energizing, start-up, or release of stored energy 

could cause injury.  These procedures do not apply when servicing or maintenance of equipment during 

normal operations unless: 

 Guards, or other safety devices, must be removed or bypassed; or 

 An employee places him/herself in an area where work on material, etc., is   actually being 

performed; or 

 An employee places him/herself in an area considered dangerous during the normal operation 

cycle. 

 

4. Compliance 
All supervisors are responsible and accountable for the use of safe lockout/tagout procedures by all 

employees under their supervision.  Compliance with lockout/tagout procedures is mandatory.  Non-

compliance with these procedures is considered a violation of an employee’s condition of employment and 

can result in disciplinary action. 

 

5. Authorization 
Employees who are properly trained and certified on equipment  

maintenance and lockout/tagout procedures, and approved by the facility manager, are authorized to 

implement lockout/tagout procedures as appropriate. 

 

Lockout/Tagout Procedures 

 

 Preparation for Lockout 

1. Review - Prior to lockout, the authorized employees(s) shall review the lockout/tagout information for 

 the machine/piece of equipment that they are going to work on.  As a minimum the following 

 information will be reviewed: 

a) Types and magnitudes of energy 

b) Hazards posed by the energy 

c) Methods to effectively control the energy. 

d) Particularly close attention must be given to energies that can be stored or re-accumulated after 

 shutdown 

2. Notification - Prior to shutdown, all affected employees will be notified to clear their work area and/or any 

 other area that might be hazardous. 

3. Shutdown - Machinery and equipment will be shut down in an orderly manner using normal shutdown 

procedures or procedures on the associated lockout/tagout information sheet for that machinery or 

equipment if required. 

4. Isolation - All energy isolation devices will be located and operated to completely de-energize and isolate 

the equipment.  The authorized employee shall insure operation of each energy isolation device has been 

completed. 

5. Lockout Devices –  

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 83 of 133



 

Lockout-Tagout program Rev 8-2016 - Example 
 

a) Lockout devices shall be used to secure energy isolating devices unless the machinery or 

 equipment is not capable of being locked out. 

b) Only authorized employees will affix lockout/tagout devices.   

c) Lockout devices must be able to hold energy isolation devices in a “safe” or “off” position. 

6.  Tagout Devices -    

a) Tagout devices will be used only if machinery or equipment is not capable of being locked out.   

b) Tags will clearly state that moving energy isolation devices from the “safe” or “off” position is 

 strictly prohibited. 

c) If a tag cannot be affixed to the energy-isolating device, it will be located as close as safely 

 possible to the device so that the tag is obvious to anyone attempting to operate the device. 

7. Fixed Observer -    

a) Authorized personnel thoroughly trained on the isolation device may be posted at the device 

 to ensure non-operation of that device when a lockout/tagout is not practical, or under 

 emergency conditions. 

b) Only the “Authorized Employee” may lockout/tagout machinery or equipment! 

8. Lockout/Tagout Materials and Hardware -   Lockout/tagout devices are provided by your  employer and 

 meet the following: 

a) Each lockout/tagout device is uniquely identified as being used exclusively for  lockout/tagout: 

b) Lockout/tagout devices identify the user: 

c) Lockout/tagout devices are not to be used for any other purpose than lockout/tagout: 

d) Tagout devices must be substantial enough to prevent inadvertent or accidental  removal.  They 

 are attachable by hand, self-locking, non-releasable with not less than 50 LB locking strength, and 

 design/characteristics at least equivalent to a one-piece, all environment-tolerant nylon cable ties. 

9. Stored Energy - Immediately after applying lockout or tagout devices, the authorized employee will ensure 

all potentially hazardous stored or residual energy is relieved, disconnected, restrained, and otherwise 

rendered safe. 

a) If stored energy can be re-accumulated, the authorized employee will verify that the energy is 

 isolated until maintenance is complete or the energy no longer exists. 

b) Verification of Isolation:  Before starting work on a machine or equipment that is locked or tagged 

 out, the authorized employee will verify that the machinery or equipment is actually isolated and 

 de-energized, using appropriate test equipment as applicable. 

c) Release from Lockout/tagout:  The authorized employee will follow the procedures below prior to 

 removing lockout/tagout devices and restoring energy: 

d) Equipment:  Make sure machinery or equipment is properly reassembled.  Inspect machinery or 

 equipment to make sure nonessential items have been removed. 

e) Employees:  Make sure all employees are safely positioned outside danger zones.  Notify affected 

 employees that lockout/tagout devices have been removed and that energy is going to be 

 reapplied. 

f) Removing lockout/tagout devices:  Only the authorized employee who applied the lockout/tagout 

 device may remove that device.  Exception – When the authorized employee is not at the facility 

 and all reasonable efforts have been taken to inform him/her that the lockout/tagout device has 

 been removed: 

g) The supervisor, or his delegate, is authorized to remove the device following procedures in the 

 section. 

h) Each supervisor, or his delegate, will be trained in proper lockout/tagout procedures. 

i) The supervisor, or his delegate, will ensure the authorized employee has this knowledge before 

 he/she resumes work. 

 

Additional Requirements 

 

1. Testing/Positioning Machines or Equipment:  Whenever lockout/tagout devices are removed to test or 

position machines and equipment, or their components, the authorized employee will complete the 

following procedures in the sequence presented. 

a) Clear the machine or equipment of tools and materials; 

b) Remove employees safely away from danger zone; 

c) Remove lockout/tagout devices; 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 84 of 133



 

Lockout-Tagout program Rev 8-2016 - Example 
 

d) Energize and proceed with testing or positioning; and 

e) De-energize all systems and re-apply lockout/tagout devices using proper procedures,  unless 

 all work is complete, and the equipment is being returned to service. 

2. Outside Personnel - Outside servicing personnel, contracted to perform maintenance or other services 

requiring lockout/tagout procedures, will not begin work until the supervisor is satisfied that their 

lockout/tagout procedures are at least equivalent to company procedures. 

3. The supervisor will also ensure company employees understand and comply with contracted personnel 

lockout/tagout procedures. 

4. Shift/Personnel Changes:  When a shift change occurs during a lockout/tagout procedure, the following 

procedures will be followed: 

a) Shift to Shift:  The off-going authorized employee will not remove his/her lock  until the 

 oncoming authorized employee has arrived and placed their lock on the machine or 

 equipment. 

b) Skip one Shift:  The off-going authorized employee will describe in detail the status of the 

machine or equipment in the maintenance log and sign the log for a “maintenance department” 

lock and place it on the machine or equipment in place of their personal lock.  The oncoming 

authorized employee, upon seeing the “maintenance department” lock will go to the maintenance 

log read the status information and then sign for the key to the “maintenance lock”.  The on-

coming authorized employee will then replace the “maintenance lock” with their own personal 

lock and return the “maintenance lock and key” to the lock storage area.  They must then sign in 

the “maintenance lock and key”. 

 

Training   

1. Training in lockout/tagout will be provided to all employees who may be in an area where energy control 

procedures are used.  This training is to ensure that the purpose and function of the energy control program 

are understood and that employees gain the needed knowledge and skills to safely apply, use, and remove 

energy controls. 

2. Authorized employees must be able to recognize hazardous energy sources, types, and magnitudes of 

energy in the workplace, and methods and means necessary to isolate and control the energy. 

3. Affected employees must be able to recognize the purpose and use of energy control procedures. 

4. Other employees must be able to recognize procedures and prohibitions of the energy control program. 

5. Training on Tagout Devices -  

a) Tags are warning devices only and do not provide a physical restraint that lockout devices provide. 

b) Tags must not be removed by anyone other than the authorized employee who used the tag. 

c) Tags must be legible, and understandable by all employees. 

d) Tags must be able to withstand environmental conditions in the workplace. 

e) Tags may give employees a false sense of security. 

f) Tags must be securely attached to prevent being accidentally detached during use. 

6. Retraining - Employees will participate in retraining at the following times: 

a) Change of job assignment; 

b) Change in machinery or equipment, or 

c) Change in operating procedures. 

7. Inspections -  

a) An authorized employee other than the one(s) using the control procedure being  inspected will 

 conduct annual inspection on lockout/tagout procedures.  The  Lockout/Tagout audit sheet shall be 

 used for initial inspections until appropriate  lockout/tagout procedures are fully implemented. 

b) The purpose of the inspection is to correct any deviations or inadequacies in the  procedures. 

c) The inspector and authorized employee must review responsibilities under the energy control 

 procedure. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 85 of 133



Oregon

OSHA

Web site:
www.orosha.org

Salem Central Office
350 Winter St. NE, Rm. 430
Salem, OR 97301-3882

Phone: (503) 378-3272
Toll-free: (800) 922-2689
FAX: (503) 947-7461

FACT SHEETFACT SHEETP
lusPlus

OAR 437
Division 2/J

Th
e C

on
tro

l o
f H

az
ar

do
us

 En
er

gy
(L

oc
ko

ut
/T

ag
ou

t)
Lockout/Tagout

General-Industry Requirements
The OR-OSHA standard for The Control of Hazardous Energy
(Lockout and Tagout), 29 CFR 1910.147, requires that hazardous
energy be controlled during service and maintenance activities. These
activities include the installation, setup, adjustment, inspection,
modification, and routine maintenance or servicing of machines or
equipment. Hazardous energy sources include electrical, mechanical,
hydraulic, pneumatic, chemical, gravity, and thermal. Machines or
equipment must be isolated from their energy source and rendered
inoperative to prevent injury or death from unanticipated, uncontrolled
hazardous energy. (Control-circuit type devices are not energy-
isolation devices.) Cord-and-plug-connected machines or equipment
are not covered under the standard if they are unplugged, the plug is
under the exclusive control of the operator, and electricity is the only
form of hazardous energy.

Employers must implement and enforce an energy control program that consists of energy-control
procedures, effective employee training, and periodic inspections. Requirements:
• Use lockout devices for equipment that can be locked out; the key must be unique to the device

and under the control of each employee working on the equipment.
• Provide tagout devices instead of lockout devices only if the tagout program provides employee

protection equivalent to that provided by a lockout program.
• Require additional safety measures such as the removal or isolation of an electrical circuit or

blocking a control switch for a tagout program.
• Ensure new or existing equipment undergoing major repairs, renovations, or modifications is

capable of being locked out.
• Provide durable, substantial, and standardized lockout and tagout devices and hardware. Lockout

and tagout devices must identify who applied them and may not be used for other purposes.
• Establish written procedures that permit only the employee who applied a lockout or tagout device

to remove it; must include provisions for device removal when the employee is not available.
• Inspect energy-control procedures at least annually.

Lockout and Tagout Devices
Lockout devices hold energy-isolation devices in a
“safe” or “off” position. They provide protection
by preventing equipment from becoming ener-
gized because they are restraints that no one can
remove without a key or by destroying the lockout
device through extraordinary means such as a
bolt cutter.

Tagout devices are prominent warning devices
fastened to energy-isolation devices to warn
employees not to reenergize equipment that is
being serviced. Tagout devices are easier to
remove and provide employees with less protec-
tion than lockout devices.

Energy-Control Procedures
Employers must document procedures for the control of
hazardous energy sources for use by authorized
employees who lockout or tagout equipment to perform
service and maintenance. The isolation or lockout
procedures for equipment with one or more hazardous
energy sources must include the following:

• The intended use of the procedure.
• Steps for shutting down, isolating, blocking,

and securing equipment.
• Steps for the placement, removal, and

transfer of lockout devices.
• Equipment-testing requirements to verify the

effectiveness of the energy-control measures.

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 86 of 133

http://www.cbs.state.or.us/external/osha/pdf/rules/division_2/div2_j.pdf
http://www.cbs.state.or.us/external/osha/


This fact sheet has been compiled by Oregon OSHA’s Standards and Technical Resources Section. Informational fact sheets highlight
Oregon OSHA programs, policies, or standards. Fact Sheet information is drawn from field staff, research by the technical resources staff,
and published materials. The information contained in this sheet does not replace the Oregon OSHA rules themselves.

H.S.

J.D.

R.J.

Lockout/Tagout
Lockout/Tagout continued

OAR 437
Division 2/J

An employer need not document the required energy-control
procedure when all of the following conditions exist and no
accidents involving the unexpected activation or reenergization
of equipment have occurred.
• A single source of energy can be readily identified and

isolated; locking out the energy source completely de-
energizes and deactivates equipment.

• The lockout device is under the exclusive control of the
employee performing the service or maintenance.

• No potential for stored or residual energy or reaccumulation
of stored energy exists that could harm employees after
shutdown; the service or maintenance activity does not create
hazards for other employees.

When reenergization is required as part of a service activity
(power is needed to test or position machines, equipment, or
components) the temporary removal of lockout or tagout devices
is allowed. This temporary exemption applies in limited situations
and only for the time required to perform the task. The procedure
must be documented.

What workers must do before they begin service
or maintenance activities:
1. Inform all affected employees of equipment shutdown.
2. Shut down equipment.
3. Isolate or block hazardous energy.
4. Remove any potential (stored) energy.
5. Lockout or tagout the energy source(s).
6. Verify the isolation and de-energization of equipment.
When multiple persons (crew, craft, department, etc.) are
involved in the service or maintenance of equipment, group
lockout is permitted under 1910.147(f)(3).The standard also
allows for the transfer of lockout or tagout devices during shift
changes when written procedures are in place.

What workers must do before removing lockout or
tagout devices and re-energizing equipment:
1. Remove tools and replace machine or equipment components.
2. Inform coworkers about energy-control device removal.
3. Ensure all workers are clear of the work area.
4. Verify machine or equipment power controls are off or in a

neutral position.
5. Remove the lockout or tagout device.
6. Re-energize equipment.

Periodic Inspection
At least annually, employers must inspect and certify all energy-
control procedures. Authorized employees other than those using
the procedures being inspected must perform the inspections. The
inspection certification must identify the equipment, and include
the date of the inspection, the person performing the inspection,
and all employees included in the inspection. The authorized
inspectors must review and verify that all:

• Lockout and tagout procedures are adequate.
• Authorized and affected employees know their procedure

responsibilities.
• Procedures are being followed.

Training
The employer must provide training that is understandable
to the employee and ensure that employees acquire the
skills to safely apply, use, and remove lockout and tagout
devices. Keep and maintain training records that includes
each employee’s name and training date(s).

Train authorized employees on the purpose and use of the
energy-control procedures, how to recognize hazardous-
energy sources (type and magnitude), and the methods
necessary to control and isolate the energy source.

Employees who operate equipment being serviced under
lockout or tagout procedures or who work in an area
where the service activity occurs (affected employees)
must be trained to recognize when an energy-control
procedure is being used. They should understand the
purpose of the procedure and the importance of not
tampering with lockout and tagout devices and not
starting or using locked or tagged-out equipment.

Retraining is necessary when there is a change in energy-
control procedures, machines, equipment, or processes,
or when an inspection reveals or an employer has reason
to believe that shortcomings exist in an employee’s
knowledge about the energy-control procedure.

Working by the Rules
Lockout and tagout rules apply to all Oregon employers
and include construction, agriculture, and maritime
employment. Employers may need to meet requirements
other than 1910.147. For example, electrical installations
and utilization equipment are covered under Division 2/S,
Electrical. See OR-OSHA’s Guide to Controlling Hazardous
Energy, www.cbs.state.or.us/external/osha/pdf/pubs/
3326.pdf, for an overview of rules that contain require-
ments for the control of hazardous energy.

Resources
For the full text of OR-OSHA rules for lockout and tagout,
refer to OAR 437, Division 2/J, The Control of Hazard-
ous Energy. Industry-specific standards are also found at
Oregon OSHA’s Web site, www.orosha.org, (Rules/Laws)
Related resource links
www.osha.gov/SLTC/controlhazardousenergy/index.html

www.cbs.state.or.us/external/osha/pdf/pds/pd-156.pdf

OR-OSHA (10/03) FS-08

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 87 of 133

http://www.cbs.state.or.us/external/osha/pdf/pubs/3326.pdf
http://www.osha.gov/SLTC/controlhazardousenergy/index.html
http://www.cbs.state.or.us/external/osha/pdf/pds/pd-156.pdf
http://www.cbs.state.or.us/external/osha/
http://www.cbs.state.or.us/external/osha/pdf/rules/division_2/div2_j.pdf


Example: Form 1: Documenting specific energy-control 

procedures 

Note to employers: Use this example as a model for documenting specific energy control procedures 

for machines and equipment at your workplace. 

Department:  Maintenance 

Equipment:  Suction Blast Cabinet w/ Dust Extraction System 

Equipment manufacturer and serial number: Dust Extraction Systems, INC. #xxxxxxx 

Contact person: Supervisor  

Authorized employee(s): Electricians 

Purpose: This procedure establishes minimum requirements for the lockout of the suction blast cabinet 

whenever maintenance or service work is performed. The procedure is used to ensure that the machine is 

stopped, isolated from all potential hazardous energy sources, and locked out before employees perform 

any servicing or maintenance.  

Notify all affected employees before this lockout procedure is used. 

Hazardous energy Lockout steps Verification steps Return to service steps 

Type Magnitude  Press the STOP 

button to de-

energize the 

machine. 

 Place the main 

service disconnect 

in the OFF 

position.  

 Lockout the service 

disconnect using an 

interlocking hasp 

and padlock 

 Switch the ON/OFF 

control to the ON 

position. Observe that the 

machine is not 

operational. 

 Return the ON/OFF 

control to the OFF 

position. 

or 

 Test for no voltage, 

phase-to-phase and phase-

to-ground. 

 Ensure machine 

components are back in 

place. 

 Check the area to 

ensure tools and 

nonessential items have 

been removed. 

 Verify all employees 

are not in the hazard 

area. 

 Remove the padlock 

and hasp from the main 

isolator disconnect and 

return to the ON 

position. 

Electrical 415 volts 

Pneumatic 100 PSI  Rotate the main air 

valve to the 

CLOSED position. 

 Lockout the valve 

using a ball-valve 

lockout, 

interlocking hasp, 

and padlock. 

 Observe that the flow of 

air ceases. 

 Bleed off residual air 

pressure. 

 Remove the ball valve 

lockout, interlocking 

hasp and padlock. 

 Rotate the air valve to 

the OPEN position. 

 

Notify all affected employees that the maintenance is complete and the machine is available for use. 

 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 88 of 133



Form 1: Documenting specific energy-control procedures 

Note: This form is used for documenting specific energy control procedures for machines and 

equipment at your workplace. 

Department:   

Equipment:   

Equipment manufacturer and serial number:  

Contact person:   

Authorized employee(s):  

Purpose: This procedure establishes minimum requirements for the lockout of the suction blast cabinet 

whenever maintenance or service work is performed. The procedure is used to ensure that the machine is 

stopped, isolated from all potential hazardous energy sources, and locked out before employees perform 

any servicing or maintenance.  

Notify all affected employees before this lockout procedure is used. 

Hazardous energy Lockout steps Verification steps Return to service steps 

Type Magnitude    

  

     

Notify all affected employees that the maintenance is complete and the machine is available for use. 

 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 89 of 133



Form 2: Lockout/tagout inspection form
Note to employers: Use this form to document an inspection of a written lockout or tagout procedure.

Department:       Equipment type and serial number:      

Inspection conducted by:      

Equipment location:      

Inspection date:      

List authorized employees using this procedure. Has the employee been trained in the procedure?

Employee name:       Yes   No

Employee name:       Yes   No

Employee name:       Yes   No

Employee name:       Yes   No

Do authorized employees know the location of the procedure?  Yes   No

Do authorized employees have access to the written procedure?  Yes   No

Are affected employees notified when the procedure is being used?  Yes   No

Have affected employees been trained to recognize when the procedure is being 
used and instructed not to remove lockout/tagout devices or start de-energized 
equipment?

 Yes   No

Can energy-isolating devices be locked out? 

Note: When you replace, renovate, or modify machines and equipment, ensure that 
the energy-isolating devices will accept lockout devices. New equipment and 
equipment renovated or modified after January 2, 1990, must be capable of being 
locked out.

 Yes   No

Did each authorized employee lock out all energy sources?  Yes   No

Does this procedure involve group lockout/tagout?  Yes   No

Did the authorized employees verify that the equipment was de-energized?  Yes   No

Did the authorized employees follow this lockout/tagout procedure?  Yes   No

Does this lockout/tagout procedure adequately protect employees?  Yes   No

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 90 of 133



2

If not, list and describe the deficiencies requiring corrective action.

1.      

2.      

3.      

4.      

5.      

If this is a lockout procedure, did the inspector review with all authorized 
employees their responsibilities under the procedure?  Note: A review can 
be accomplished by meeting with employees individually or in a group.

 Yes   No  

Not applicable 

If this is a tagout procedure, did the inspector review with all authorized 
employees their responsibilities under the procedure? Note: A review can be 
accomplished by meeting with employees individually or in a group.

 Yes   No  

Not applicable 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 91 of 133



Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 92 of 133



Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 93 of 133



Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 94 of 133



Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 95 of 133



Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 96 of 133



Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 97 of 133



Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 98 of 133



Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 99 of 133



Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 100 of 133



Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 101 of 133



Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 102 of 133



Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 103 of 133



Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 104 of 133



Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 105 of 133



Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 106 of 133



Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 107 of 133



Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 108 of 133



 
 

D I R E C T O R  O F  F I N A N C E  
M O N T H L Y  R E P O R T  

 
    

DATE:   08/23/2016 

PERIOD:  July Board Meeting 

TO:  Port of Newport Commissioners 

ISSUED BY:  Stephen J. Larrabee 
    
 
 
 
OVERVIEW 
 
Financials: 
July year to date financials are attached.  

Updated financials from last fiscal year show the General fund bringing in over $450,000 in operating 
income.   

 
Finance Operations: 
 
The Check Signing authorization cards will need to be updated and a resolution to start the process has 
been included in the packet. 
 
I have been working on the Personnel Manual and will have a first draft to the General Manager by 
September 1st. 
 
The Finance Team has been working on an Operations Manual for the South Beach RV Park which will 
be completed by the end of the calendar year. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
  

 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 109 of 133



July 2016 Occupancy Report 
 
 
To:  Port of Newport, Board of Commissioners 
From:  Penny, South Beach Marina & RV Parks 
08/19/16 
 

We had a very busy July in South Beach.  The Marina RV park occupancy numbers were down due to a 
few no shows and late cancellations.  This did not affect our revenue because cancelations made within 
3 days are subject to a fee of one night's rent.  The Annex numbers were up for the reason that we had 
more monthly recreational moorage holders staying with us this year. 
 
 We had lots of transient activity in the marina.   
 We booked 1,041 reservations at the front office and 218 were made online.  
 

 July 2015 2016 Change 
YTD 
2015 

YTD 
2016 Change  

 Marina 11251 11718 4.15% 57,987 62,608 7.97%  
         

 
Marina 

RV 3537 3265 -7.69% 10,746 11,058 2.90%  
 Annex RV 1326 1543 16.37% 3,488 4,521 29.62%  
 
 
 

        
         
         
         
         
         
         
         
         
         
         
         
         
         
         
         

0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

12000

14000

July '15 Aug '15 Sept'15Nov '15 Dec'15 Jan'16 Feb'16 Mar'16 Apr'16 June'16 July'16

Month at a Glance

Marina Marina RV Annex RV

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 110 of 133



 

 

 
 

  

 

 

 

 

D I R E C T O R  O F  O P E R A T I O N S  

M O N T H L Y  R E P O R T  

 

    

DATE:   8/19/2016 

PERIOD:  July - Aug 2016 

TO:  Kevin Greenwood 

ISSUED BY:  Rick Fuller 
    
 
 
OVERVIEW 
 
Summary:   
Rogue has progressed with site work and foundation concrete. The Multi Use Area is operable and 
receiving good design reviews. Request for Proposals (RFP) have been completed for two projects at 
Port Dock 5 and are included in the agenda as recommendations for approval.  The International 
Terminal completed its first compliance inspection and is working to gain compliance for the MTSA 
certification. The safety committee has completed a comprehensive safety and health policy which has 
been submitted for commission approval as a resolution. 

 
Detail:  

 Rogue Warehouse Expansion: The Rogue expansion continues to progress and it is 
estimated that they are at least one month behind the original schedule placing the projected 
occupancy into November. They have completed most of the foundation work and are pouring 
interior slabs.  Asphalt was installed at the Multi Use area (Old boat launch) and the 
construction fencing was moved allowing the use of the area.  The total shared cost of the infill 
project as shown in the attached schedule of values is $421,919 which is 96% complete. 
 
The new design of the Multi Use Area has received very good reviews from users.  The addition 
of topsoil and landscaping will be completed after the high season when staff labor can be used 
for cost control. 
 

 NOAA MOC-P dredging:  Pacific Habitat Service (PHS) has completed the work on the Joint 
Permit Application.  Advanced Remediation Technologies has performed the sediment sampling 
as required by the by the Army Corps of Engineers. The JPA will be submitted this period. 
 

 NOAA MOC-P recreational access:  SHN Engineering has been working on the details for the 
floating dock connections to the existing piling at the sea wall.  SHN Engineering design concept 
that will add an additional 60ft of dock section to the west end of the service dock attached to 
the existing seawall piling has been reviewed and accepted by ODFW.  The access will include 
the improvement of the small triangular grounds west of the Rogue Brewery and provide access 
down to the water for recreational crabbing activities.  The later area has recently been cleared 
and mowed by the SB staff. 
  

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 111 of 133



 

 

 
 

  

 Permits:  Brad Johnson of the USACE conducted a permit compliance inspection on both the 
NOAA and the International Terminal permits.  The inspection was positive with clarification of 
pending conditions provided.  An interpretive kiosk was placed at the NW Natural roadway 
across from the dog parking area as part of the NOAA recreational access condition.  I continue 
to work on the details of the outstanding NIT dredging permit conditions. 
 

 PON/CBP permanent foundation for modular structures: No change to the CBP modular 
office trailer. All cost estimates for the CBP office have been submitted to GSA for similar work 
at the 10’x32’ modular building, but the acceptance and agreement remain pending.  The 
project is required in order to comply with city building code. 
 

 Port Dock 5 fixed pier approach:  The RFP for professional services for the study, design and 
pricing of the eventual structural replacement of the approach has been completed with the 
recommendation by the selection committee to hire OBEC Engineering.  The details of the 
recommendation are submitted under the consent calendar item IV(d).  Work on the project is 
anticipated to start late-August pending commission approval. 
 

 Port Dock 5/7 Pile replacement:  The RFP for the replacement of pile and floating dock repair 
has been completed and is submitted under the New Business agenda item VII(b) for 
recommendation to contract Bergerson Construction Inc..  Work is scheduled for the beginning 
of the in-water work period in November. 
   

 General Departmental: 
o Due to two minor employee accidents involving vehicles at the North Commercial 

Marina, the completion of the Safety and Health policy became top priority in order to 
establish employee safety guidelines.  The policy creates a comprehensive outline for a 
loss prevention plan as required by the SDAO and OSHA.  The policy revision was 
begun in 2015 by the Safety Committee and has been vetted by SDAO and 
management.  The completed policy has been submitted for resolution adoption per the 
New Business agenda item VII(a).  
 

o The working draft of the Facility Maintenance & Operation Plan continues to be a work in 
progress and was delayed until the Safety Policy was completed and submitted for 
commission adoption.  As a component of the personnel policy which HR is currently 
working on, the FMOP outline will include at a minimum: Facility operation and program 
goals, facility and asset identification, maintenance procedures, training, and 
accountability expectations. 
 

o This months shout out goes to NIT Supervisor Pete Zerr who has been focused on the 
recent US Coast Guard inspection required to gain the Marine Transportation Security 
Act (MTSA) certification.  The inspection indicated a few outstanding items which Pete is 
diligently working on to complete by the next inspection.  Pete is working with staff, TCB 
security, Border & Customs, and the USCG and will be setting up a required site 
exercise in September. 
 

o Jim Durkee and the Finance department have been updating the original 20yr 
maintenance/replacement projection including costs for the NOAA facility as attached. 
 
 

International Terminal – Pete Zerr, Superintendent 
 

Billable services:  
 Forklift  - 29hrs 
 30 Ton Hydraulic crane – 17hrs 
 Moorage – 87 days 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 112 of 133



 

 

 
 

  

 Dock Tie Up – 163hrs 
 Labor – 39hrs 

 
Other 
 USCG site visit on July 26th for review of MTSA requirements for Facility Security Plan. 
 Crane Ops for installation of Pasley Prop on Bayfront for early morning of July 22nd.  
 Preparing for USCG MTSA Annual Exercise currently scheduled for Sept 1st.  USCG was 

emailed with date. 
 

N. Commercial docks – Kent Gibson, Interim Harbor Master 
 

Billable services: (estimated) 
 Forklift - 104hrs 
 Hoist crane –12.5hrs 
 Dock Tie Up – 210.5hrs 
 Labor – 114hrs 
 
Other 
 Resurfaced nonskid ramp transition plate at bottom of dock 7 
 Drained and cleaned out used oil tanks.  Replaced old valves and piping 
 Annual hoist inspection-All passed 

 
NOAA MOC-P – Jim Durkee, Facility Manager 
 

 Room 143 security wall: Lincoln Glass installed the wall framing on 8-15-16. The glass is 
scheduled for installation and project completion 8/19/2016. 

 Pier lighting inverter replacement: Replacement inverter has been installed and is operating 
 Annual inspections are in progress 
 Completed soil sampling with Advanced Remediation for the dredging permit 
 
Vessels using facility since last report – Bell M Shimada, Reuben Lasker, Sikuliaq, OSP 
Guardian, USCG Fir.  
Year to date, 1222 passengers crossed the bar on vessels using the NOAA wharf.     
 
Office Occupancy Rate – 67% 
 
S. Beach Marina & RV – Chris Urbach, Harbor Master 
 
Billable services: 
 Launch tickets – 990 tickets sold this period.  8908 tickets sold since new machine installed. 

 
Other 
 The Mates volunteer group have completed the RV Park main entrance sign and the 

interpretive kiosk at the north fish table  
 Runion’s Construction haul off of Cougar Ann & Jimco complete.  Grumpy Dragon is 

scheduled for haul off to Toledo this month 
 Installed new water line at the old boat launch site along the new sidewalk 
 North restroom residing continues to progress with labor provided by Angel Job Corps 

 
Volunteer Work Crews 
  

Port Mates – The group continues to help each department with incidental trash removal.  The 
Mates are working on cleaning and painting the entry anchor at the front of the International 
Terminal office.  Kiosks on both sides of the bay are now being updated and current literature 
installed and will be maintained regularly. 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 113 of 133



 

 

 
 

  

 
Angel Job Corps - The Job Corps have had some progress since the instructor’s absence.  The 
scope of work is to provide labor & equipment for the scaffolding, siding removal, sheathing 
repair, painting, and installation of new hardy board lap siding and trim.   

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 114 of 133



Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 115 of 133



2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 2028/29 2029/30 2030/31 2031/32 TOTAL

Paint Int. Common (3yrs) 25,000         25,000         25,000         25,000         25,000         25,000         150,000         

Paint Int. Offices (4yrs) 40,000         40,000         40,000         40,000         40,000         200,000         

Carpet & Flooring (5 yrs) 75,000         75,000         75,000         75,000         300,000         

-                  

Wharf & Inwater -                  

Fender/Camel System 10,000         10,000         10,000         10,000         40,000            

Buoys and Floats 12,000         12,000         24,000            

Sm Boat Dock & Ramp 10,000         10,000            

Cathodic Protection 25,000         25,000         50,000            

Electrical 20,000         20,000         40,000            

Storm Filter system 2,000           2,000           2,000           2,000           2,000           10,000            

Lighting 20,000         20,000            

Berth Dredging 275,000       275,000       275,000       275,000       275,000       275,000       1,650,000      

Eel Grass Mitigation 9,500           9,500           9,500           9,500           9,500           9,500           9,500           9,500           

Upland Buildings and Site -                  

Storm Filter System 4,000           4,000           4,000           4,000           4,000           20,000            

Asphalt Coating/Stripe 20,000         20,000         20,000         20,000         80,000            

Concrete Repair /Replace 15,000         15,000            

HW Heaters 10,000         20,000         30,000            

Boiler/HW Heat System 15,000         15,000            

HVAC System(s) 10,000         10,000         10,000         30,000            

Critical AC Systems 10,000         10,000         10,000         30,000            

Fire Safety -                  

UPS Battery Replacement 45,000         45,000         45,000         45,000         180,000         

Lighting 20,000         20,000            

Warehouse Roof 100,000       100,000         

Office Roof 45,000         45,000            

Office Fascia, Gutters, Soffit 100,000       100,000         

Elecrical 10,000         10,000         10,000         

Recreation Mitigation 100,000       100,000         

Total Capital Maintenance Annual -               -               -               36,500         198,500       389,500       34,500         11,500         340,500       79,500         224,500       277,000       69,000         -               380,000       177,000       56,000         275,000       25,000         47,000         744,000       3,365,000      

Total Capital Maintenance Accumulative $$ -               -               -               36,500         235,000       624,500       659,000       670,500       1,011,000   1,090,500   1,315,000   1,592,000   1,661,000   1,661,000   2,041,000   2,218,000   2,274,000   2,549,000   2,574,000   2,621,000   3,365,000   3,365,000      

Beginning Unrestricted Cash 3,200,000   

Misc Reimbursables 200,000       

Annual Maint. Reserve 33,720         33,720         33,720         33,720         33,720         33,720         33,720         33,720         33,720         33,720         33,720         33,720         33,720         33,720         33,720         33,720         33,720         33,720         33,720         33,720         33,720         708,120         

Accumulative Reserve 3,233,720   3,267,440   3,301,160   3,334,880   3,368,600   3,402,320   3,436,040   3,469,760   3,503,480   3,537,200   3,570,920   3,604,640   3,638,360   3,672,080   3,705,800   3,739,520   3,773,240   3,806,960   3,840,680   3,874,400   3,908,120   3,908,120      

Reserve Account Balance 3,233,720   3,267,440   3,301,160   3,298,380   3,133,600   2,777,820   2,777,040   2,799,260   2,492,480   2,446,700   2,255,920   2,012,640   1,977,360   2,011,080   1,664,800   1,521,520   1,499,240   1,257,960   1,266,680   1,253,400   543,120       543,120         

NOAA MOC-P     20 YEAR CAPITAL MAINTENANCE COST PROJECTION
TASKS

SFO Capital Maintenance 

Capital Maint/Repair/Replace

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 116 of 133



G E N E R A L  M A N A G E R  
M O N T H L Y  R E P O R T  

 
DATE:   8/23/2016 

RE:  August Regular Meeting 

TO:  Port of Newport Board of Commissioners 

ISSUED BY:  Kevin Greenwood, General Manager 
    

 
ROGUE MURAL UPDATE 
 
Ardis deFreese has been occupied by her contract with HMSC and we’ll be shooting for a noon work 
session on Sept. 27th to see her concepts. I will be attending a City Arts Committee meeting in 
September to inform them of progress. 
 
HIGHWAY 20 UPDATE 
 
Please note change that the ten hour closures have begun. 
 
Destination Newport (http://discovernewport.com/travel-info) and ODOT (http://us20pme.org/trip-
planning/) have developed websites and noticing systems to keep the public informed about the US-20 
project. The public can receive email updates on changes to the closure schedule by signing up 
through http://us20pme.org/email-updates/. 
 
US 20 PME: UPRR – Eddyville (Phase 4) (U.S. 20 MP 15.78 – MP 31.48)  
Project Summary:  

• Construction of landslide mitigation and geotechnical features 
• Over 350,000 cubic yards of earthwork 
• Construction of roadbed, aggregate base and asphalt concrete pavement 
• Installation of drainage, guard rail, striping, and signing 
• Installation of a wildlife crossing culvert under the new roadbed 
• Erosion control 
• Landscaping 
• Re-routing public traffic onto the new alignment 

10-hour full highway closures will continue Sunday through Thursday nights from 7:30 p.m. to 5:30 a.m. 
Currently no closures scheduled on Friday and Saturday nights. Construction of Phase 4 continues with 
drainage, blasting and excavation work near the west end of the project at approximately MP 16. 
Expect increased truck traffic on the existing U.S. 20 due to material hauling and deliveries on both the 
east and west ends of the project. Night paving work on the interior of the project will continue. Paving 
work is being done on the new alignment and should not cause any delays to traffic on the existing U.S. 
20 alignment until September or early October. Guardrail replacement work continues on the interior of 
the project. All other work is taking place away from the existing U.S. 20 alignment.  

 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 117 of 133

http://us20pme.org/email-updates/


OCZMA MEMBERSHIP/LIAISON UPDATE 

Commissioner Chuck noted that he’d like to continue on as the Port of Newport’s Oregon Coastal Zone 
Management Association (OCZMA) liaison. Updated Liaison list also included. OCZMA serves local 
elected officials on the Oregon Coast.  OCZMA is a clearinghouse of objective information on issues 
relating to the Oregon Coast—this information is then shared with the state and federal 
government.  OCZMA conducts studies on the Oregon Coast's economy and carries out applied 
research to improve the standard of living in the region.  Through an extensive network of local 
government officials and many other partners, OCZMA gives voice to the concerns and needs of 
coastal residents. Membership for the Port is $800 annually and is budgeted. 

SPECIAL DISTRICTS ASSOCIATION OF OREGON (SDAO) TRAINING 
 
The Port sent three officials to the Board Duties, Responsibilities and Liabilities Training at the Best 
Western last week. Steve Beck, Kent Gibson and myself attended. Topics discussed included Powers 
and Protections, Roles and Responsibilities, Ethics, Conflicts of Interest, Public Meetings, Public 
Records and Liability and Exposures. 
 
George Dunkel did a great job of conducting the training. He also mentioned that SDAO provides a 
service to conduct board practices assessment. I’ve included a copy of the assessment that took place 
of the Port Commission on January 13, 2015. This may be beneficial to the new members of the board. 
 
PASLEY PROPELLOR MOUNTED AT MUSEUM 
 
Pacific Maritime Heritage Center continues to work on the commemorative site for the CW Pasley 
propeller. Included in your packet is text that will be included at the site. The Port has also provided a 
number of photos of the propeller being removed during the terminal remediation a few years ago. Our 
agreement with the PMHC allows the Port to collaborate in the development of historical information. 
Pete Zerr has submitted some corrections that have been included. I have asked Steve to consider 
adding text about the history of shipping at McLean Point. 
 
DEQ APPROVAL FOR FISH STATIONS 
 
The Port of Astoria recently closed down two recreational fish cleaning stations in a dispute with DEQ 
over recent fines due to their storm water collection permits. Though it appears that the Port’s decision 
to close the stations were symbolic and the fines were not directly associated with the blood, scales 
and oils entering the bay, I did discover that most of the south coast ports do have permits for their 
cleaning stations. The permit that allows the activity is a General 900-J and I have asked DEQ about 
how to go about getting approval for our six stations and the public hoist dock at North Commercial. 
 
I did visit Charleston harbor after the Coastal Economic Summit and their 900-J allows for the fish 
carcasses to be dumped in the channel and incidental liquids to drain into the marina. The Port of 
Newport disposes carcasses via dumpster through Thompson sanitary service so our approval would 
only be for liquid. 
 
As DEQ becomes more vigilant on these types of water quality issues, the Port will want to continue to 
get ahead of these potential problems and work with DEQ officials to get these basic approvals. Stay 
tuned…. 
 
 
 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 118 of 133



OTHER 
 

• BBQ Albacore Tuna Classic was a great success. Walter and I judged the recipes on Saturday 
and attended the NOAA 5th Anniversary on Friday evening. The event is getting bigger as they 
sold out at 12:30 a full hour earlier than last year. 

• The Port continues to participate in conversations with the Corps of Engineers regarding sand 
fencing at South Beach State Park. There is not much interest by the City, State Parks and 
others about adding fencing to the beach access and the city does not have a Dune 
Management Plan which would allow for temporary excavation of sand to recreate fore dunes 
that would prevent sand from continuing to blow into the federal channel. 
 

-###- 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 119 of 133



Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 120 of 133



Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 121 of 133



Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 122 of 133



Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 123 of 133



 

600 S. E. BAY BOULEVARD, NEWPORT, OREGON 97365   PHONE (541) 265-7758    FAX (541) 265-4235   www.portofnewport.com 
 

 

 

MEMBERSHIP LIAISONS 
As of June 21, 2016 

 
Cascade West Council of Governments* - ($3178.37) 
must be elected: Walter Chuck; Ken Brown (alt) 
 
Cascade West Economic Development District*  
Kevin Greenwood 
 
Cascade West Area Commission on Transportation* -  
Walter Chuck; Ken Brown (alt); alternate may be staff 
 
Oregon Coastal Zone Management Association 
(OCZMA)*# -- alternate may be staff ($800.00) 
Walter Chuck 
 
Pacific Northwest Waterways Association (PNWA)* 
($7200.00) Walter Chuck, Kevin Greenwood 
 
Mid Coast Watershed Council ($245.00) 
Stewart Lamerdin 

 
Oregon Public Ports Authority (OPPA)* ($9,686.29) 
Kevin Greenwood 

 
Oregon Economic Development Association (OEDA) 
($250) Kevin Greenwood 

 
Economic Development Alliance of Lincoln County 
(EDALC)* Kevin Greenwood 

 
Special Districts Association of Oregon (SDAO)* 
($4,000.00) Kevin Greenwood 

 
Yaquina Bay Economic Foundation (YBEF)* ($300.00) 
Kevin Greenwood; Ken Brown 

 
Yaquina Bay Ocean Observing Initiative (YBOOI)* 
Kevin Greenwood 

 
North America Ocean Observing (NANOOS)* 
Kevin Greenwood 

 
Coastal Marine Experiment Station (COMBS)* 
Stewart Lamerdin  

 
Pacific Coast Congress of Harbormasters and Port 
Managers (PCCHPM)+ 
Kevin Greenwood; Steve Larrabee; Rick Fuller 

 
DAS OPS ORCPP – ($500.00)   
Rick Fuller, Steve Larrabee 

 
Oregon Ethics Annual ($619.30) 
 
Fishermen Involved in Natural Energy for Lincoln 
County (FINE)~ 
Walter Chuck 
Newport Chamber of Commerce (NCOC)* ($297) 
Kevin Greenwood 
 
Northwest National Marine Renewable Energy 
Center Advisory Committee (NNMREC)& 
Walter Chuck 
 
Department of Geology and Mineral Industries 
Marine Advisory Committee (DOGAMI)& 
Walter Chuck 
 
Oregon Department of Fish and Wildlife Sportfish 
Advisory Committee (ODFW)& 
Walter Chuck 
 
Ocean Policy Advisory Council (OPAC)& 
Walter Chuck 
 
Newport Urban Renewal (adhoc) 
Patricia Patrick-Joling; Ken Brown (alt) 
 
Newport Airport Committee (adhoc) 
Ken Brown; Patricia Patrick-Joling (alt) 
 
Newport Regional Airport Task Force (adhoc) 
Kevin Greenwood 
 
Newport Airport Planning Subcommittee (adhoc) 
Kevin Greenwood 
 
Newport Parks & Rec Committee~ 
Kevin Greenwood 
 
Newport Bay Front Parking Dist. Committee* 
Kevin Greenwood 
 
International Terminal Liaisons (adhoc) 
Walter Chuck, Stewart Lamerdin  
 
Human Resource Liaisons (adhoc) 
Walter Chuck, Steve Beck  
 

 
*paid/mandated membership 
#must be elected commissioner 
~community organization (no port vote or membership) 

+paid professional organization 
&personal or non-port related board membership 
*=Paid via SDAO membership

 
Serving the Maritime & Recreational Communi t ies

Newport International Terminal (541) 265-9651           Newport Marina at South Beach (541) 867-3321 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 124 of 133

http://www.portofnewport.com/


 
 

SPECIAL DISTRICT 
BOARD PRACTICES ASSESSMENT 

 
PORT OF NEWPORT  

January 13, 2015 
 

Board Members: Walter Chuck, Pres., Dean Fleck, Ken Brown, JoAnn Barton, David Jincks 
   General Manager: Kevin Greenwood 
 

 
 

KEY PERFORMANCE AREAS 
 
 

 
 

RATING  

 
 

ASSESSMENT 
Good Caution Danger 

   
 
Board Duties and Responsibilities 

    

 
     
 
      Adherence to standards of good stewardship 

    
Board members feel that in the course of their many 
projects they’ve had multiple opportunities to gauge 
how they’re viewed by the public, that they are 
perceived as being “very accessible”, and the public 
“is confident in us and the direction the Port is 
taking”.  Members feel that together they have 
grown as a board during the Port’s “turnaround” and 
have become more attuned with the community. 
 

 
      
     Demonstration of good governance practices 

    
The Board’s development of new Bylaws is a “first” 
and constitutes “a more prominent policy document 
that will provide a road map for our future”. The 
document was created with input from all Board 
members and with “one voice” will serve as the 
operating manual for commissioners and the Port. 
 
 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 125 of 133



 
Operational Compliance 

    

 
       
      Overall regulatory compliance 

    
The Port is “miles ahead of where we used to be” in 
it’s understanding of “the realities of compliance”. 
The Board feels it is in a more “mature” position on 
environmental matters and now willingly takes extra 
steps with additional expenditures to take ensure  
“higher levels of oversight”.  
 

 
     
     Timeliness of compliance reporting 

    
“We do a good job” as a port of staying on top of 
reporting; “we trust Kevin to know and alert us on 
any reporting issues and have learned from 
experience that it sometimes pays to hire an outside 
firm to manage the permit process.” 
. 

 
     
     Potential compliance challenges 

    
The Board is “hawkish about mitigation” and 
continually scrutinizes Port priorities; the failed fuel 
line is an example of a situation that became a top 
priority through a lot of Board input and trust in staff. 
  

 
Budget and Finance 

    

 
     
     Consistency in budgeting to meet needs 

    
The Board has “evolved and modernized the 
accounting practices” and as a result is able to 
better balance emergency and infrastructure needs. 
  

 
     
    Soundness of financial practices 

    
“We are comfortable with our system of checks and 
balances.” The Board views their internal controls 
as “protection” for themselves and employees and 
feels they benefited from a recent change in the 
auditing process which involved them in reviewing 
and providing input to the audit draft before it was 
prepared in final form.  
 
 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 126 of 133



 
Customer Relations 

    

 
     Management of service problems 

    
“A lot of room for growth” in this area with a need for 
a more professional demeanor and appearance by 
employees who routinely deal with the public. 

   
    
     Improvements to customer service 

    
Kevin needs more time as the new GM to build 
relationships and establish trust with employees to 
develop the professionalism of those who have the 
most public contact. The Board feels employees 
need to have more “ownership” for customer 
relations. 

 
Personnel Administration 

    

     
     
     Staff morale and work climate 

    
The Board feels that staff is well managed by the 
GM and that morale is good, an example of which is 
the positive adjustment made by a long time 
employee who was not selected for an opening. 

     
     
     Management of employee performance 

    
The GM’s performance is reviewed by the Board but 
the 16-year old personnel manual needs to be 
modernized to provide a better performance review 
system.  

 
     
    Alignment of positions with work assignments 

    
There are alignment issues that Kevin is looking at 
and will be making changes over time for a better fit 
of personnel with job duties. 

 
Policies and Procedures 

    

 
    Soundness of administrative policies 

    
The Board is very satisfied with the work the GM 
has done in instituting sound management policies 
and practices through the new Board Bylaws as well 
as the Port’s Business Plan and Facilities Plan. 
 
 

 
    Consistency between work practices and policies 

  

 
    Efficiency of staff and work systems 

  

 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 127 of 133



 

The Giant Prop: a Larger than Life History  
Steve M. Wyatt 

 

The scale of this historic relic stops people in their tracks as they walk by: It weighs 7 tons and 
has a diameter of 14 feet. 
 

This giant ship propeller, the Bayfront’s newest landmark, doubles as a calling card for the 
Pacific Maritime Heritage Center, a maritime museum and event center located at 333 S.E. Bay 
Blvd., just across the street from Port Dock 5. 
 

To know the history of this prop is to know something about the development of concrete, 
World War II and Yaquina Bay shipping. The solid steel prop is from the concrete-hulled vessel 
C.W. Pasley. It was one of 24 vessels built under the wartime emergency program near the end 
of World War II. The C.W. Pasley was a general cargo vessel, 336 feet long, with a gross tonnage 
of 4,800. The deck and hull were made entirely of concrete reinforced with steel. Concrete was 
used as a conservation measure in order to save steel for more vital wartime uses. 
 

There were 24 such vessels built by McCloskey and Co. of Tampa, Fla., for the United States 
Maritime Commission, an arm of the federal government. McCloskey and Co. built the identical 
concrete vessels for an average of $2 million each, more than double the estimated cost. 
Adjusted for inflation, that is about $27 million in today's dollars. While these concrete vessels 
were known to be seaworthy and handled reasonably well, they were quite slow, with an 
average sea speed of 8.5 knots (9.7 mph). Today's oceangoing container ships are designed to 
travel at speeds around 24 knots and are three to four times larger than the McCloskey 
concrete ships. 
 

The C.W. Pasley was named for Charles William Pasley (1780-1861), a noted British soldier and 
engineer. He was an advocate of militant British colonialism and inventive military engineer 
who wrote and published several texts on engineering, construction, architecture and 
mathematics that became classics of their day. During his stint as a lecturer at the Royal School 
of Military Engineering, he researched the development of artificial hydraulic cement, an 
improvement over "Roman cement." He was ultimately successful. 
 

His namesake concrete hulled vessel was launched on March 21, 1944. The C.W. Pasley was 
converted into an Army storeship hauling food and provisions in the Southwest Pacific (the 
waters surrounding the Philippines). In 1945, after war's end, the C.W. Pasley returned to 
Seattle. 
 

In 1948, the newly formed Yaquina Bay Dock and Dredge Co. took possession of the C.W. Pasley 
and two other identical concrete vessels built by McCloskey and Co. — the Francois Hennebique 
and the Joseph Aspdin — for use in constructing a dock at Yaquina Bay. Yaquina Bay Dock and 
Dredge built the new terminal using two of these ships on land it leased to the Port of Newport 
at McLean Point upriver from Newport's Bayfront. 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 128 of 133



 

The Francois Hennebique was named after a French stonemason turned very successful 
engineer who pioneered the use of reinforced concrete for a diversity of structural engineering 
challenges. His namesake ship was equipped with two large guns (that were never used) and 
launched and delivered to the Army in 1944 for use as a storeship in the Southwest Pacific. It 
sailed in the Philippines and to Japan. 
 

In 1946, it was towed to San Francisco. The Joseph Aspdin was named for an English bricklayer 
who patented the first predecessor to modern "Portland cement." The Aspdin was launched in 
1943. A few months later, it was in operation by a military contractor. While at sea, it safely 
weathered a major hurricane and saw service as an Army storeship in the South Pacific. In 1947, 
it returned to the United States. The Joseph Aspdin is remembered as "the ship that committed 
suicide." Instead of being sunken to become part of the international terminal at Yaquina Bay, it 
broke loose of its moorings, left the bay, crossed the bar and went aground, sinking near the 
north jetty. 
 

In 1948, the Yaquina Bay Dock and Dredge Co. sank the C.W. Pasley and the Francois 
Hennebique at McLean Point to serve as wharves for cargo handling. The ships were stripped of 
all salvageable gear; provisions such as dishware, the ship's wheel, fixtures and compasses were 
sold at an impromptu store and made their way into the homes of many locals. Since then, 
some of these items have been donated to the Pacific Maritime Heritage Center. 
 

The stripped hulls were floated into place and sunk by blasting holes in their sides and bottoms. 
The holes remained open to allow water to fluctuate with the tides. The area between the hulls 
and the shore was backfilled with sand from Yaquina Bay. The C.W. Pasley proved problematic 
from the get-go. It never sat on the bottom of the bay solidly and tipped to one side and slowly 
cracked. The superstructure of the Francois Hennebique was used by the Yaquina Bay Dock and 
Dredge Co. as office space. 
 

The first large ocean-going vessel was received at this innovative and hastily constructed dock 
in December 1949. The terminal was run by private operators from the 1950s through the late 
1970s, among them Yaquina Bay Dock and Dredge and Sunset Terminals. In 1982, the Port of 
Newport purchased McLean Point / International Terminal. In the mid-1990s, fuel oil started 
leaking out of theC.W. Pasley's cracked hull, and log exports trickled to a halt with the last log 
ship called at the Newport Terminal dock in May 1999. 
 

A complete renovation of the terminal began in 2010. As part of the project, the C.W. Pasley 
was refloated and dismantled and the Francois Hennebique partially dismantled. Much of the 
Francois Hennebique hull still remains under the terminal and the bow can be seen sticking out 
of the tarmac. The cement from the hulls was ground up and reused as paving material and the 
metal rebar recycled. The two ships had a combined scrap metal value of over $900,000. The 
new terminal opened for business in August 2013. 
 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 129 of 133



The propeller of the C.W. Pasley, at the Pacific Maritime Heritage Center on loan from the Port 
of Newport, is one of the few objects saved from the renovation project. A nine minute 
YouTube video  documenting the prop's installation can be seen at: 
 https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=gT6wAgWWfEM 
 
 

 

 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 130 of 133



G E N E R A L  M A N A G E R S  R E P O R T   
A G E N D A  I T E M  

 
 
DATE:   August 23, 2016 

RE:  Goal Setting / Mission, Vision, Values 

TO:  Board of Commissioners 

ISSUED BY:  General Manager 
    

 
BACKGROUND 
 
During my annual performance evaluation earlier this year, one of my Tier 2 goals was to facilitate a 
Goal Setting session with the Port Commission. In June, the Port Commission reiterated its interest in 
pursuing Goal Setting. As part of my research, I did contact Spencer Nebel, Newport City Manager, and 
obtained a copy of the Goal Setting process from Commissioner Patrick-Joling. 
 
As a number of planning efforts are currently being pursued by the Port including the Facilities 
Maintenance and Operations Plan (FMOP), Maritime Transportation Security Act (MTSA) Plan, 
Personnel Policy, and refinement of the Economic Development Administration (EDA) grant, I would 
recommend that the Commission aim for an early November half-day goal setting session. This will 
allow facility managers and department heads time to complete current projects and develop materials 
that will help aid the Commission in goal setting. In addition, the general manager’s annual evaluation 
begins in January and the adopted Commission goals will be helpful in setting the GM’s goals. 
Ultimately, the prioritized goals and annual evaluations should provide direction for budget priorities. 
 
GOAL SETTING PROCESS 
 

• Included in your packet is a one page sample worksheet that each facility manager/department 
head will fill out. The individual facilities that will submit goal setting form include: International 
Terminal, North Commercial, South Beach Marina and RV Park (ops), NOAA MOC-P, Security 
and South Beach Office (admin), and the soon-to-be-established Maintenance Department. The 
Finance and Operations Directors will also provide their goals as well. Finance will cover 
accounting, information technology and human resources. 

• Management will review a first draft of the individual worksheets at our September 20th 
Department Head Meeting, with refined plans submitted October 11th for final management 
team review on October 18th. 

• By the end of October, staff will provide the compiled goal setting work sheets, the General 
Manager’s performance evaluation goals, Capital Improvement Plan/adopted Capital 
Improvement List, and the Strategic Business Plan. These documents will provide background 
to the Commission for Goal Setting.  

• A four hour work session will be scheduled in early November (Saturday, November 5th) to 
accomplish the following: 

o Receive each facility’s goals and discuss. 10-15 minutes per facility. 
o Commission will compile, during the presentations, on index cards, goals that they would 

like to see considered in the upcoming budget process. 
o The Commission will organize the cards into groupings for review. 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 131 of 133



o Facilitator will summarize on poster paper the groupings to be prioritized/evaluated. 
o Commissioners will receive 10 stickers to be placed next to their preferred projects. 

Stickers have equal value and a Commissioner may place all 10 on a single priority or 
distribute equally among 10 different priorities. 

o Commission will review results and affirm order of priorities. 
o Review Mission, Vision and Organizational Values. 

• Staff will develop a report summarizing the priorities and the Commission will formally adopt the 
proposed Commission and Departmental Goals at their November 15th meeting. The document 
will be posted on the Port’s website and shared with staff. 

• During the budget process, the General Manager will describe how goals are being addressed 
(or not). 

• The following year will include an evaluation by management on how goals were met and the 
process will be repeated. 

  
REVIEW OF MISSION, VISION AND VALUES 
  
After the Goals have been established, the Commission may want to review its Mission, Vision and 
Values. The Port last reviewed these statements in 2012 as part of its larger Strategic Business 
Planning effort. 
 
GOVERNING VALUES 
 
Values represent the Port’s most deeply held driving forces, which help us determine our highest 
priorities. They are the foundation on which we as Port Commissioners and as staff conduct ourselves 
and perform work for the Port. They serve as our guiding principles -- the motivation for our goals, 
strategies and actions to accomplish our mission. They clarify who we are as the Port of Newport, 
articulate what we stand for, and express what we deem as acceptable standards for how the Port of 
Newport interacts with users, customers, partners, and our own team members. 
 

Leadership. The Port of Newport accepts responsibility for taking the lead role on behalf of the 
citizens of the Port district in actively pursuing economic progress, which we believe means building 
and maintaining an economically diverse and thriving community that is resilient in its ability to 
respond positively to changing conditions and circumstances. 
 
Service. Our business is public service – to the commercial and recreational fishing fleets, to the 
tourist and marine industries, to our lessees and visitors, and to the citizens of the Port District. Our 
intent is to strive constantly for quality in all the services we provide. 
 
Collaboration. We pursue and maintain mutually supportive partnerships with our neighbors, 
including the private sector and local, state and federal government agencies. In the Port’s 
experience, the greater Newport community owes a significant part of its success to the 
foundational belief of governments and citizens alike to work with determination toward common 
goals in a spirit of mutual respect and cooperation. 
 
Accountability. The Port serves as a steward of public resources. We manage our properties in a 
responsible manner, and support our personnel – our human resources – through regular feedback 
and evaluations designed to improve competence and performance. 
 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 132 of 133



Sustainability. The Port recognizes that we must manage the resources of the built environment 
and the natural environment in a manner that does not compromise the ability of future generations 
to meet their needs. To that end, we will maintain our capital facilities in working order, we will 
manage the funds entrusted to us wisely, prudently and ethically, and we will maintain policies that 
guide us in helping nurture a healthy estuary that is the foundation of our working waterfront. 
 
Optimism. We have confidence in the importance of our mission, and in our ability to overcome 
obstacles, seize opportunities, and pursue our vision through steadfastness of purpose, awareness 
of our core values, and persistent focus on achievement. 
 

VISION STATEMENT 
 
The idea behind a vision statement is to express, more or less in future tense, what we want the Port 
(and Newport) to be at some future point. Since a mission statement and the Strategic Business Plan 
itself are typically five-year efforts, the Vision Statement looks a little farther (10 or 20 years) into the 
future. Our vision expresses what we want to see, what we believe we can accomplish if we stretch our 
capabilities and aim for the vision. 
 

“The Port of Newport will serve as the premier Oregon coast port for the commercial fishing fleets, 
for recreational fishing and tourism, and for ocean observation and marine research support. We 
will be one of the top two Oregon coast ports for waterborne commerce while protecting and 
enhancing the beauty and integrity of the natural environment which is the foundation of our 
working waterfront community.” 

 
MISSION STATEMENT 
 
A Mission Statement defines the Port of Newport’s purpose – what we do and why we do it. The 
intention of having a mission statement is to give the Port’s public, its customers (and ourselves) a 
succinct awareness of that purpose.  
 

“Build and maintain waterfront facilities, and promote/support projects and programs in cooperation 
with other community organizations and businesses that will retain and create new jobs and 
increase community economic development.” 

 
-###- 

 

Port of Newport Regular Commission Meeting August 23, 2016 Page 133 of 133


	00.2016.08.23 RM Agenda
	04.A.1.2016.07.26 SM Minutes draft
	04.A.2.2016.07.26 RM Minutes draft
	Ken Brown declared a conflict of interest because of payments made to Les Schwab. A motion was made by Patrick-Joling and seconded by Jincks to accept the accounts paid. The motion passed 4 – 0.

	04.b.Financial Report
	04.c.2016-xx Designating Bank Accounts and Authorizing Check Signers
	PORT OF NEWPORT RESOLUTION NO. 2016-
	THE PORT OF NEWPORT BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS:
	APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS this 23rd day of August, 2016.

	04.d.1.Agenda Item IV D - Staff Report  Recommendation-PD5 fixed pier approach engineering contract
	04.d.2.Re_ Confidence in bid selection for PD5
	04.e.Parking District IGA
	ParkDist0
	07.c.2.IGA - Bay Front Parking District - Draft (002)
	ParkDist2
	Park Dist3
	ParkDist1

	06.b.Accounts Paid
	06.c.ITSFUpdate
	07.a.1.Staff Report & Recommendation - Safety & Health Policy
	07.a.2.2016-xx DRAFT Health and Safety Plan
	07.a.3.OR-OSHA Self Insured Memo 2010
	07.a.4.Self Insured Poster grayscale
	07.a.5.Lockout-Tagout program Rev 8-2016 - Example
	07.b.Agenda item-PD5 pile replacement  staff recommendation
	08.a.0.Director of Finance Board Report July 2016
	08.a.1.July 2016 Occupancy Report
	08.b.Director of Operations Monthly Report Aug2016 (003)
	08.c.0.2016.08.23 GM
	08.c.3.a.2016 OCZMA Renewal & Dues
	08.c.3.b.2016.06.21.MemberLiaisons
	Newport International Terminal (541) 265-9651           Newport Marina at South Beach (541) 867-3321

	08.c.4.SDAO Training Board Assessment
	08.c.5.Prop History
	08.c.9.GM Goal Setting
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



